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© MISSION

To cater to the needs of the rapidly rising MSME industry, fuelling
both industry growth and employment generation.
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To facilitate financial inclusiveness across the country and
contribute to the nation’s overall economic development.
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Aiming to be one of the most trusted and admired NBFC to aid
financial services to various Entrepreneurs, MSMEs and Indi-

vidual Businesses, MFI companies.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

SFLwasincorporatedasalimited companyon August10,2018 under the provisions ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Satin Creditcare Network Limited. SFL is
Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the business of providing various financial services to
entrepreneurs, MSMEs and individual businesses. SFL's aim is to “serve the small business owners
(MSMEs), by providing them loans for their business needs. SFL has adopted a unique credit
underwriting and assessment model to understand the income source and derive eligibility of the
potential customers.

More information about the Company’s services and operations can be accessed on its website at
https://satinfinserv.com

The Hon'ble NCLT, vide its order dated January 31, 2023 approved the said Scheme of Arrangement
for Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with Satin Finserv Limited and
Subsequently, after requisite filing with concerned ROC, the said Scheme got effective from March
01, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 2021. Due to said merger, there are impact on
overall position of the Company, including financial numbers, branches, loans,

borrowing details etc.”

IV SOME OF BASIC DETAILS OF THE COMPANY, AS ON MARCH 31, 2025, ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Gross LoaN PorTroLio [ssuen SusscriBED AND Paip-up CAPITAL Numser oF CLIENTS
Rs. 547.68 CRores Rs. 157.55 Crores 66,301

DiSBURSEMENT PRESENCE EmpLOVEES
Rs. 347.90 Crores 11 States THROUGH 70 BRANCHES 1,022

NETWORTH PRorIT ArTER TaX
Rs. 190.25 Crores Rs. 7.45 CRores

BV OUR CORE VALUES

o A N

Seeking Excellence Accountability & Ownership Teamwork and Collaboration Nurturing Lives
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PRODUCT OFFERINGS

Product Purpose Ticket Size Tenure Collateral Eligibility Criteria

Small Ticket Business Loan | Income Generation Activities 15Lto 350 60 Months Property Minimum age: 22,
Working Capital Business stability of minimum
Short-term (1 to <3 years) Financing 3 years

Long-term(3-5 Years)

Large Ticket Business Loan | Term Loans Up to SCr 60 Months Unsecured Business stabilty of minimum 3
years,

Company needs to bel
profitable as per last audited
financials

TARGETCUSTOMER
SEGMENT

Agri Business, Dairy, Agri Equipment, Agri Chemicals/Fertilizers, Cattle
Feed, Animal Husbandry & Poultry

Retail/Trading, Kirana/General Store, Chemist, Cloth Merchants,
Footwear Retailers, Hardware, Electrical, Sanitary Wear Traders/Retailers

Service (Restaurants, Auto Service Centers, Diagnostic Centers, Tailoring/Job
Work, Plumbing Work/Electrician, Tent House Businesses)

Textile and Garments Manufacturer & Job workers, Footwear Manufacturer,
Bag Manufacturer, Wood & Plastic Furniture Manufacturer

Cement and Steel Traders, Wood and Plastic Traders

Consumer Durables Traders, Bakery/Sweet Shops, Bottled Water




GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

No. of
Branches

1 18
2 Punjab n
3 Uttar Pradesh 10
4 Rajasthan 10
5 Haryana 5
6 West Bengal 4
7 4
8 Uttarakhand 3
9 Delhi 2
10 Gujarat 2
n Maharashtra 1
Total 70




PROGRESSIVE JOURNEY

AUGUST 2018

Incorporated

JANUARY 2019

NBFC Licence Received

DECEMBER 2019

AUM of Rs.100 Crs

MARCH 2019

Commenced Business

MARCH 2020

st full year of Operations

PAT of Rs 64 Lakhs

JULY 2020

Reduction of Ticket Size to

3.5 lakhs

JULY 2021

Recommenced Business

Post 2nd lockdown

MARCH 2021

2nd full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 477.82 Lakhs

MARCH 2022

3rd full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 181 Lakhs

MARCH 2023

Merger of Taraashna with SFL

4th Year PAT - 606 Lakhs.
AUM -682 Cr.

MARCH 2025

MARCH 2024

AUM crossed the Rs. 500 Crores Got Debt Listed on BSE

"IN

mark Strategically reduced the BC book




CORPORATE INFORMATION

I NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra (Chairperson)

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
I AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Sundeep Mehta (Chairperson)
Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra
I IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra(Chairman)
Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
Mr. Dhiraj Jha
Mr. Arjun Bansal
Mr. Aniruddha Tripathi
Mr. Sundeep Kr. Mehta

| ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh(Chairman)

Mr. Dhiraj Jha
Mr. Arjun Bansal

I RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Sundeep Kr. Mehta(Chairman)

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra
Mr. Surojit Chatterjee
| IT STEERING COMMITTEE
Mr. Aniruddha Tripathi(Chairman)
Mr. Dhiraj Jha
Mr. Surojit Chatterjee
Mr. Manish Dwivedi
Mr. Irshad Hussain

I INFORMATION SECURITY COMMITTEE
Mr. Surojit Chatterjee(Chairman)

Mr. Dhiraj Jha
Mr. Manish Dwivedi
Mr. Aniruddha Tripathi

Independent Director
Non Independent & Non - Executive director
Independent Director

Independent Director
Non Independent & Non - Executive director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Non Independent & Non - Executive director
Chief Executivce Officer (CEO)

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Head - IT

Independent Director

Non Independent & Non - Executive director
Chief Executivce Officer (CEO)
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Independent Director

Non Independent & Non - Executive director
Independent Director

Head- Credit & Risk

Head - IT

Chief Executivce Officer (CEO)
Head-Credit & Risk

Head-HR & Admin

Head (SME)-Sales & Collection

Chief Information Security Officer ( CISO)
Chief Executivce Officer (CEO)

Head-HR & Admin

Head - IT

I COMMITTEE OF EXECUTIVE FOR FRAUD RISK MANAGEMENT (NEW COMMITTEE FORMED ON OCTOBER 25, 2024)

Mr. Dhiraj Jha(Chairman)
Mr. Irshad Hussain
Mr. Surojit Chatterjee

Mr. Aniruddh Tripathi
Mr. Manish Dwivedi

Chief Executivce Officer (CEO)

Head (SME ) - Sales & Collection

Chief Information Security Officer( CISO)
& Head- Credit & Risk

Head-IT

Head- HR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

| SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s S. Behera & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries S-1/3 & 4, 1st Floor, Near Uphaar Cinema,

GCreen Park Ext., New Delhi - 110 016 Email: shesdev@gmail.com
M/s DVP & Associates LLP, Practising Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial
Auditors of the company in the Board Meeting held on April 25, 2025 for the FY 2025-26.

| REGISTER AND TRANSFER AGENT
MUFG Intime India Pvt Ltd. (Equity)

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West, Mumbai, Maharashtra
400083

022 - 4918 6000

Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com/

KFin Technologies Limited (For Debentures)

Selenuim Building, Tower — B, Plot No 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Telangana- 500032

Website: www.kfintech.com

I STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants 201, 202, 2nd Floor, A-20, Indraprastha

Bhawan, Dr. Mukherjee Nagar, Commmercial Complex, Delhi-110009.
Email: info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

I DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
AXis Trustee Services Limited The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29, Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai- 400028




I BANKERS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Banks

State Bank of India

ICICI Bank

HDFC Bank

ESAF Small Finance Bank

Financial Institutions

Caspian Impact Investments Pvt Ltd

Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Co.

IKF Finance Limited

Kissandhan Agri Financial Services Pvt Ltd

Maanaveeya Development & Finance Pvt Ltd

Manappuram Finance Limited

MAS Financial Services Ltd

Muthoot Capital Services Limited

Nabkisan Finance Ltd

Northern Arc Capital Ltd

Poonawalla Fincorp Limited

Shriram Finance Ltd

Tourism Finance Corporation of India Ltd

Vivriti Capital Pvt Ltd

Vivriti Asset Management

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

I CREDIT RATING
Nature

Long Term Bank Facilities — ICRA
A-Stable

Non-convertible Debentures - ICRA
A-Stable

| CONTACT DETAILS
Satin Finserv Limited Registered Office &

Corporate Office:

4th floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar
Phase-lIl, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

CIN: UB5999HR2018PLC099128

Email: info@satinfinserv.com

Tel. No.: 0124-47154000 Website: www.
satinfinserv.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DR. HARVINDER PAL SINGH

Non-Executive Non Independent Director

Dr. HP Singh, a law graduate and Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India since 1984, brings over four decades of experience in
financial services, with a strong focus on financial inclusion and innovation.
Renowned for his leadership in microfinance, he combines financial
acumen with a motivational leadership style that inspires teams and
nurtures future leaders.

He serves on the Banking and Financial Institutions Committee of FICCI
and has held prominent roles including Chair of Sa-Dhan and Trade
Commissioner forthe Indian ASEAN Trade Council. Dr. Singh has completed
leadership programs at Harvard Business School and Wharton and holds
an honorary Ph.D. in Microfinance from GNA University in recognition of
his contributions to social and economic empowerment.

MR. SUNDEEP KUMAR MEHTA

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Mr. Mehta, a science graduate from the University of Rajasthan, also holds
a Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration from Annamalai Uni-
versity, along with multiple certifications in cyber law, labour laws, auto
engineering, and HR. He joined the SCL Board in 2013, bringing over 14
years of diverse experience in leadership roles at organizations such as RKJ
Group, Escorts Ltd., Panacea Biotech, Bata India, and Eicher Good Earth.

MR. ANIL KUMAR KALRA

Non-Executive - Independent Director
Mr. Kalra, Independent Director, has over 31 years of experience in banking,

financial services, and infrastructure financing across India and the UK. He
served as CEO of a London-based financial firm and held senior roles at
major banks and NBFCs. He holds an MBA from FMS, Delhi, and a B.Com
(Hons) from SRCC.

MS. JYOTI AHLUWALIA

Non-Executive - Women Independent Director

Dr. Jyoti Ahluwalia, Independent Director, holds a Ph.D. in Commmerce and
is a Chartered Financial Analyst. She is an Associate Professor at Sushant
University with prior academic and corporate experience at ICFAI, Milliman
India, and Corporate Executive Board. She is also certified by HDFC Bank
as Banking Faculty.
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

MR. DHIRAJ JHA

CEO
Mr. Dhiraj Jha is a financial risk ex-
pert with 20+ years of experience
in portfolio management, risk ana-
lytics, and operations. He has held
leadership roles at Allahabad Bank
and SBI, managing teams of 215+
and portfolios over INR 2,600 crore.

MR. SUROJIT CHATTERJEE

Head Credit & Risk
Mr. Surojit Chatterjee has 23 years
of experience, including 13 years
in the NBFC sector
products like commercial vehicles,

managing

cars, construction equipment,
and SME finance. He has worked
with Mahindra Farm Equipment,
CEAT, Magma Fincorp, and most
IKF Finance. He holds

an engineering degree from the

recently,

Indian Society of Engineers.

MR. MANISH DWIVEDI

Head HR & Admin

Mr. Manish Dwivedi is an HR pro-
fessional with 18 years of experi-
ence across sectors like automo-
bile, real estate, FMCG, and NBFCs.
He has worked with companies
such as Honda, DLF, and Nikon,
and was last Head — HR & Admin at
Almaha Foods. He holds an MBA
from Symbiosis, Pune.

MR. ARJUN BANSAL
CFO

Mr. Arjun Bansal having more than
11 years of experience in Financial
Services viz accounting, finance,
budgeting and taxation. Prior to
Joining Satin, he has worked with
[IFL Group. He is a Qualified Char-
tered Accountant & Commerce
graduate from Delhi University.

MR. IRSHAD HUSSAIN

Head Collection & Business

Mr. Irshad Hussain brings 18 years
of experience across the NBFC and
manufacturing sectors. He has held
key roles at L&T Finance, Kotak Ma-
hindra Bank, Magma Fincorp, ACE
Ltd, and most recently served as
Business Head at Barota Finance.
He holds an engineering degree
from IME.

MS. SANGAM JAISWAL

Company Secretary & CCO

Ms. Sangam Jaiswal, a B.Com (Hons)
graduate and Associate Member of
ICSI, has 8+ years of experience in
secretarial compliance, corporate
governance, fundraising, and board
affairs. She previously served as Sr.
Manager — Compliance at Eastman
Auto and Compliance Manager at
Ashika Credit Capital, focusing on

SEBI and RBI regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk MANAGEMENT

CrepiT PoLicy

Bureau
CHECKS

COLLATERAL

OWNERSHIP
VERIFICATION

MoniToRING

CONCENTRATION
-INpusTRY

CoLLECTIONS

CENTRAL
CrepiT TEAM

UNDERWRITING PROCESS

TELECALLING
-AWARENESS AND

Fraup CHecks

-Pincone -EARLY BUCKET
SampLE FiELD

SCORECARD INVESTIGATION

Low LTV CreDIT

OPERATIONS
INFANT AND EARLY FieLp CoLLEcTIONS

CAsHFLOW DELINaUENCY Team Pre
ASSESSMENT INTERNAL SIBHTING
Aupir

REsTRICTED
TICKET SIZE

ESSENTIAL
BusiNess

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL

Preeti Kashyap, a young entrepreneur from Etah, UP, secured a X2.25 lakh
loan from SFL to open her cosmetic shop in Kashganj. With the funding,
she stocked a variety of products and offered expert services, making her
shop a go-to destination for beauty enthusiasts. Preeti repaid the loan
on time, thanks to her shop’s success, and empowered herself through
entrepreneurship.

Jasmail Singh, a resident of Bihar, secured a X2 lakh loan to open a
general store. With the funding, Jasmail was able to stock essential goods
and cater to the local community’s needs. His store became a convenient
shopping spot, and he worked hard to repay the loan, achieving financial
stability and success in his business venture.

Here's a brief scenario:

Paramjit Kaur, a skilled tailor from Punjab, secured a X125 lakh loan to
expand her tailoring business. With the funding, she purchased new
equipment, hired additional staff,andincreased her client base. Parmjeet’s
business flourished, enabling her to repay the loan and establish herself
as a successful entrepreneur in the region's garment industry.
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CEO SPEAK'S

MR. DHIRAJ JHA

CEO

Empowering MSMEs and Delivering Sustainable Growth

Access to finance remains a significant hurdle for MSMEs, with only 16% receiving timely formal
credit. This forces many entrepreneurs to rely on personal resources or moneylenders, limiting
their growth potential. The lack of proper financial documentation poses a key challenge,
particularly for tiny industries. Most entrepreneurs understand just two parameters i.e. sales and
margin, which should be made central to product design and credit assessment to help these
tiny industries.

At Satin Finserv Limited, we aim to utilise this financing gap as a key opportunity to build our
scale, starting with tailored credit solutions focused on sales and margin metrics and leveraging
digital financial ecosystem to effectively serve underserved MSMEs.

According to Udyam registration data, 95% of MSMEs are micro enterprises, of which 93% have
investment level of less than Rs. 5 lakh, which is the most promising yet underserved segment.
We believe targeted government schemes removing documentary bottlenecks, providing
credit guarantees, and incentivizing technology and environment-friendly modernization will
unlock this sector's full potential. The MSME sector is projected to grow to USD 1 trillion by 2028
providing immense and diverse opportunities across industries and supply chain systems.

At Satin Finserv Limited, we are proud to contribute to this growth by delivering tailored
financing solutions to underserved MSMEs. In FY 2024-25, our disbursements grew by 58.6%
year-on-year to Rs. 34,789.53 lakhs, reflecting robust demand and geographic expansion. Our
Assets Under Management (AUM) increased by 9.3% to Rs. 54,767.55 lakhs, with the retail MSME
portfolio growing an impressive 58.2%. We maintained strong credit discipline, reducing GNPA
from 5.6% in December 2024 to 4.8% by March 2025, while preserving stable net profit margins.
Our capital position remains healthy with a CRAR of 37.6%.

As we move forward, Satin Finserv is committed to leveraging technology, data-driven credit
assessment, and inclusive lending to empower MSMEs, our nation’s backbone to grow
sustainably and create shared value for our stakeholders.



=/

Satin Finserv Limited

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors takes immense pleasure in presenting the 7t Board’s Report of Satin Finserv
Limited (“SFL” or “Company”), along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended

March 31, 2025.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(In INR Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total revenue 12,661.71 12,140.51
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit before Tax 1,058.30 703.52
Less: Tax Expenses 313.02 188.75
Profit after Tax 745.28 514.77
Add: Other comprehensive income 041 (3.24)
Total comprehensive income 745.69 511.53
Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) 0.47 0.36

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Operational Highlights

The Company offers small ticket business Loans to business owners in manufacturing, trading and services
providers posting a low annual turnover or a segment predominantly excluded from mainstream access
to organized finance.

During FY 2024-25, the loan portfolio of SFL has grown with an increase in geographic expansion
maintaining stable net profit margins. Investments in technology and better credit assessments
have enhanced operational efficiency and customer experience.

As on March 31, 2025, SFL had 47 branches of SME lending across 11 states. The Company plans
to continue its growth journey by opening more branches and further investing in technology to
optimize operating costs and improve collection efficiency.

During the year under review, the Company reported a profit after tax of INR 745.28 Lakhs as
compared to INR 514.77 Lakhs for the previous year, resulting in an increase of 44.77% in profit.
This increase can be attributed to a 4.29 % increase in total revenue, which rose from INR 12,140.51
Lakhs to INR 12,661.71 Lakhs, coupled with increase in total expenses by 1.46%, which grew from
INR 11,436.99 Lakhs to INR 11,603.41 Lakhs.

During the period under review, your Company has disbursed loans of INR 34,789.53 Lakhs in
SME Business and thereby, achieved AUM of INR 51,631.84 Lakhs (on book) and INR 3,135.71
Lakhs (off book).

During the period under review, your Company’s net worth stood at INR 18,255.74 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2025. This is SFL’s Seventh year of operations, and we have been profitable in all years,
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except FY 2018-19 i.e. the year of Incorporation. SFL has reported total income of INR 12,661.71
Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025, and Profit before tax stood at INR 1,058.30 Lakhs.
Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) is 37.62% which is well above the regulatory requirement of
15.00%.

e During the seventh year of operations, SFL has shown decent growth in terms of sanctions &
disbursements of loans with retail disbursements having grown by 51% from FY 23-24 in SME

Business.
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Number of Branches 70 119
Number of Active Borrowers 66,301 1,21,293
Own* 38,171 21,123
Managed** 28,130 1,00,170
Gross Loan Portfolio (in Lakhs) 54,767.55 50,100.77
o Quwn* 51,631.84 32,637.32
o Managed** 3,135.71 17,463.44
Number of Employees 1,022 1,181
Total Disbursement (in Lakhs) 34,789.53 40,177.46
e QOwn* 34,789.53 21,943.16
e Managed** - 18,234.30

*Own- SME Business **Managed- JLG Business Correspondent (BC)

***The Decrease in the amount pertaining to JLG Business is due to the Company’s strategy to run down
the BC operations of the JLG Business.

Credit Rating

The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was as follows:

Rating Agency Facilities/Instruments Amount Rating Rating
(INR Action
Lakhs)
ICRA Limited Long-term fund-based bank 8000 [ICRA]A-(Stable) Reaffirmed
facilities
NCD Programme 12000 [ICRA]A-(Stable) Reaffirmed
Fund Raise

(a) Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Debenture Trustee:-
During the year under review, the Company had allotted the following debentures
1. 2500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable Non-

Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/ - (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One) investor
on June 28, 2024 on private placement basis ;
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2.1,999 (One Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable
Non-Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One)
investor on August 30, 2024 on private placement basis ; and

3. 2,500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable Non-
Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/ - (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One) investor
on September 20, 2024 on private placement basis.

The Company had appointed Axis Trustee Services Limited, having Corporate Office at The Ruby, 2nd
Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai-400028, as the Debenture Trustee for the Non-
Convertible Debentures issued by the Company. The Company has duly submitted the required
documents and intimations to the Debenture Trustee as per agreed covenants and made timely payments.

(b) Bank Finance

As on March 31, 2025, borrowings from banks were INR 2,723.41 Lakhs as against INR 3,271.44 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2024. The borrowings other than banks as on March 31, 2025 were INR 40,898.40 Lakhs as
against INR 22,039.10 Lakhs as on March 31, 2024.

Scheme of Amalgamation

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench vide its order dated January 31, 2023
had approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with
SFL and after requisite filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, the said Scheme got
effective from March 1, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme was April 1, 2021.

Prospects & Outlook

SFL, having impressively crossed INR 500 crore on-Book AUM milestone, is charting an ambitious growth
trajectory in India’s rapidly expanding SME lending landscape. As the country’s entrepreneurial base
broadens and small businesses increasingly seek formal credit, SFL is uniquely poised to become a key
enabler of this transformation. Backed by strong macroeconomic fundamentals, supportive government
initiatives and a shift toward formalization of the MSME sector, the demand for agile and inclusive lending
is at an all-time high.

Company’s focused strategy centred around leveraging advanced technology and deep customer insights
is designed to unlock the full potential of this market. By embracing alternative data, predictive analytics
and introduction of automated loan processing, the company will be able to cater to new-to-credit
borrowers and underserved regions with speed and precision.

Furthermore, SFL is gearing up to roll out specialized loan products, with a strong governance framework,
prudent risk management and a customer-first philosophy. SFL is evolving into a next-generation NBFC
with the capacity to shape the future of SME financing in India.

Looking ahead, the company has the potential to more than double its AUM in the next 2-3 years expand
into new geographies, and emerge as a nationally recognized, tech-enabled financial powerhouse. SFL is
no longer just a participant in the lending ecosystem, it is positioning itself as a transformative force driving
financial inclusion, economic empowerment, and entrepreneurial growth at scale.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

e  Authorized Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company stood at INR 1,58,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Hundred Fifty-Eight Crores) divided into 15,80,00,000 (Fifteen Crores Eighty Lakhs) Equity
Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

e Issued Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Issued Share Capital of the Company stood at INR 1,57,55,78,920 (Rupees One
Hundred Fifty-Seven Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs Seventy-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty)
divided into 15,75,57,892 (Fifteen Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Fifty-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and
Ninety-Two) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

e Paid-up Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at INR 1,57,55,78,920 (Rupees One
Hundred Fifty-Seven Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs Seventy-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty)
divided into 15,75,57,892 (Fifteen Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Fifty-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and
Ninety-Two) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the year ended on March 31, 2025.
DIVIDEND

To grow the business of the Company and enhance the rate of return on investment of the Members, it is
necessary to conserve the resources. The Directors are of the opinion to retain the profits for the year within
the Company and thus have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended March
31, 2025.

RESERVE AND SURPLUS

An amount of INR 149.06 Lakhs, being 20% of the Profit After Tax (PAT) was transferred to Statutory
Reserve of the Company during the year pursuant to Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Closing balance of said reserve stood at INR 561.80 Lakhs as on March 31, 2025. Further, the closing balance
of the retained earnings of the Company for FY 2024-25, after all appropriation and adjustments was INR
(313.78) Lakhs as compared to INR (910.41) Lakhs in FY 2023-24.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted/received any deposit during the year under review falling within the
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Your Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as a Non-Deposit accepting NBFC under
Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934. Your Board of Directors hereby reports that the Company has not
accepted any public deposits during the year under review and it continues to be a non-deposit taking
non-banking financial company in conformity with the guidelines of the RBI. As such no amount of
principal and interest was outstanding during the year.
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, INVESTMENT OR GUARANTEE

During the year under review, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”), the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment
Companies.

Since the Company is Non-Banking Financial Company, the disclosures regarding the particulars of the
loans and guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186(11) of the
Act, read with rules made thereunder, as amended. Further, the details of investments made by the
Company are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has aligned its current system of internal financial control with the requirement of the Act.
The Company continues to monitor the efficiency of internal controls through a comprehensive internal
control framework which has been designed to ensure transparency and accountability in the
organisation’s process of designing and implementing a system of internal control. Through this
framework risks in the company are identified, analysed and appropriate responses are managed.
Moreover, the Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by internal auditors and statutory
auditors of the Company. Statutory Auditors review the Internal Financial Controls and inform the same
in their report. Other Committees i.e. Nomianation and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Asset Liablity
Management Committee (ALMC), Risk Management Committee (RMC) and Information Technology
Strategy Committee (ITSC) (Full form of the name of Committees) review the required matters on frequent
basis and ensure proper system and processes.

The Company’s internal controls systems are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations.
These have been designed as well as operating effectively to provide a reasonable assurance with regard
to recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper authorisation,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures and ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

Also, an audit on internal systems, processes and controls as required under RBI Master Direction on
Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices was conducted by
CyberCube Services Private Limited. Further, as per the said audit report, all of the controls required for
the NBFC Sector are implemented by the Company. This indicates your Company has an integrated and
robust Information Security Management System in its processes and information security.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitments or events recorded after the closure of financial year
March 31, 2025 till the date of signing of Board’s Report.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Satin Creditcare Network Limited. Your Company does
not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company within the meaning of clause (6) Section 2
of the Companies Act, 2013 at any time during the year ended March 31, 2025
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANEGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

e Directors

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors comprises of 4 (Four) Directors, consisting of 3 (Three)
Independent directors, 1 (One) Non-executive Director. The details are as follows:

S. No. Name of Director(s) Category of Director(s)

1. Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh Non-executive, Non -Independent
Director

2. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra Independent Director

3. Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Independent Director

4. Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia Independent Director

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f.
January 16, 2025. The Board place on record, its appreciation for the valuable contribution of Mr. Bhuvnesh
Khanna in the sustained growth of the Company during his tenure.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall have at least one-
Woman Director on the Board. Your Company has Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia, as Woman Director on the Board.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Act and other applicable laws.

e Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Harvinder
Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment at ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Board of Directors recommends his
re-appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation.

The appointment of Directors and Senior Management are as per recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Company, Fit and proper criteria of Company’s policy and applicable RBI

guidelines.

e Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

As on March 31, 2025, there were 3 KMP’s in the Company The details are as follows:

S. No. Name of the KMP Designation of the KMP

1. Mr. Dhiraj Jha Chief Executive Officer
(appointed w.e.f January 17, 2025)

2. Mr. Arjun Bansal Chief Financial Officer

3. Ms. Sangam Jaiswal Company Secretary & Chief
(appointed w.e.f January 17, 2025) Compliance Officer

e Statement on declaration "Certificate of Independence" u/s 149 (6) from Independent Directors
and declaration and undertaking as per applicable RBI guidelines

Pursuant to Section 149(6) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
includes Independent Directors, ensuring an appropriate balance of skills, experience, and knowledge.
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This enables the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The Company has a Board-
approved Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) in accordance with applicable RBI guidelines
and the Companies Act, 2013, ensuring that appointed directors are fit, qualified, and periodically
evaluated. During the year under review, the Company received Declarations of Independence from all
the Independent Directors, in compliance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, as well as
declarations and undertakings from each director on fit and proper criteria as per provisions of the Master
Directions - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended time to time.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors, along with the Committees of the Board, provides leadership and guidance to the
Company’s Management and direct, supervise and control the activities of the Company.

The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review. The meetings were held on the following
dates April 22, 2024, July 24, 2024, September 9, 2024, October 25, 2024, January 16, 2025, January 31, 2025,
and March 20, 2025.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS

Performance appraisal framework was formulated and adopted by the Board. Pursuant to the provisions
of Sec 134(3)(p) read with Sec 178 of the Act, a formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
committees (mandatory under Secretarial Standard-1), Individual Directors was carried out for FY 2024-
25, using questionnaire covering, amongst others, composition of board, effective decision making, advice
and necessary guidance, open communication, meaningful participation, knowledge & expertise of
Directors, contribution at Board meetings etc. Further, Individual Directors were evaluated in terms of
participation in the meetings of Board and Committees, Education & Qualification, effective examination
of the financial and other information related to operations of the Company, raising of valid concerns,
impartial & meaningful participation and adequate deliberations in the meeting. The actions emerging
from the Board evaluation process were collated and on consolidated basis, the summary of the ratings
was prepared, and the report of performance evaluation so arrived at, was circulated to Independent
Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board along with ratings.

The Independent Directors in their meeting held on March 20, 2025 has reviewed and forwarded to the
Board the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole of the Company taking into
account the views of Directors of the Company for the FY 2024-25 and reviewed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board as required under the
provisions of the Act, and rules/schedule made thereunder. The Board found the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board “satisfactory” for FY
2024-25.

The NRC has evaluated the performance of Independent and Non-Independent Directors in its meeting
dated March 20, 2025, for the FY 2024-25 and forwarded the same for Board’s consideration.

Thereafter, the evaluation qualitative comments and suggestions of Independent Directors and NRC was
circulated to the Board and Board of Directors in it’s meeting held on March 20, 2025, inter-alia has
evaluated the performance of Board, Committees (mandatory under Secretarial Standard -1) and
Individuals Directors of the Company for the FY 2024-25 as required under applicable laws. The Board
found the overall performance “satisfactory” for FY 2024-25.

In compliance with Schedule IV of the Act, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on March
20, 2025 inter alia, for the following:

21



Ly A
a4 .I
Satin Finserv Limited
1. To review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

2. To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

All Independent Directors, i.e. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra, Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta and Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia
were present at the meeting. The Independent Directors present at the meeting deliberated on the above
were satisfied with the performance of the non-independent director and the Board as a whole.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has complied with the applicable and mandatory
Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

1. That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departure.

2. That they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on March 31, 2025, and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date.

3. That they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4. That they have prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2025, on a going concern
basis;

5. That they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025;

6. That they have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31,
2025.

INFORMATION ON MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL

During the period under review, no significant or material order was passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals affecting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there is no materially significant related party transaction with the
Company’s promoters, directors, the management, their subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The necessary disclosures regarding the related party
transactions are given in the notes to accounts. In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has
formulated the RPT Policy.
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All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval as per the Related Party
Transactions Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. Further, details of all transactions with
related parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements of the Company. Particulars of
Contracts or Arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) is given in Form AOC- 2 as
“Annexure - 1”.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

Statutory Auditors and their report

At the Company’s 6" Annual General Meeting held on August 8, 2024, M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 021776N), Delhi, were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the term of five (5) consecutive years up to the conclusion of Eleventh Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 139 and Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, eligibility letters
have been received from Statutory Auditors M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Registration No. 021776N) for the financial year 2025-26 and on recommendation of Audit
Committee of the Company, the Board has reviewed and monitored their independence, performance and
effectiveness of audit process as per the applicable laws.

The Auditors” Reports for the financial year 2024-25 do not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. The notes regarding the Accounts referred to in the Auditors” Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for further comments. The Board has placed on record its appreciation for the
services rendered by M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as a Statutory Auditor of
the Company.

Secretarial Auditors and their report

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 22, 2023, based on recommendation of Audit
Committee of the Company, had appointed M/s S. Behera & Co., Company Secretaries (ICSI PCS
Registration No. 5980), as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2024-25 for conducting the audit of
the secretarial and related records of the Company. The Company provided all the assistance and the
facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for conducting the Secretarial Audit. The secretarial audit report is
annexed to this Board’s Report as “Annexure II”. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark
made in the Secretarial Audit Report.

The Board has placed on record its appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries, as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

In view of the requirements, M/s DPV & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries (FRN:
L2021HR009500) were appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company in the Board Meeting held on
April 25, 2025 for the financial year 2025-26. M/s DPV & Associates LLP a peer-reviewed firm having
Certificate No. 6189/2024, valid until October 31, 2029.

Cost Records and Cost Audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of Cost Audit as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable for the business activities carried
out by the Company.

23



</
o § 5
Satin Finserv Limited

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditor nor the secretarial auditor have reported to the
Audit Committee or to the Board, under section 143(12) of the Act, any instance of the fraud committed in
the Company, the details of which need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of RBI
guidelines. The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors.

The Audit Committee, in compliance with recent RBI amendments, ensures that Information System
Audits of the Internal Controls are conducted to assess the operational risks faced by the NBFCs.
Additionally, The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting process and reviews, with the
Management, the financial statements to ensure that the same are correct and credible. The Audit
Committee has the ultimate authority and responsibility to select and evaluate the Independent Auditors
in accordance with the law. The Audit Committee also reviews performance of the Statutory Auditors, the
Internal Auditors, adequacy of the internal control system.

During the year under review, all the recommendation of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Composition of the Audit Committee and its terms of reference and the
details of meetings attended by the Audit Committee members are provided in Corporate Governance
Report which forms an integral part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to integrity and transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on
business ethics. The Board of your Company exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of
term and endeavors to enhance long-term shareholder value. The Governance framework is anchored by
the clearly defined policies and procedures covering areas such Anti- Bribery and Anti-Corruption,
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and Whistle Blower Policy.

A Corporate Governance Report as required under Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended, forms
an integral part of this report.

POLICIES
1. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Sustainability and Social Responsibility are an integral element of the Corporate Strategy of the Company.
The Company has in place the Board approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in line with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from to
time. The CSR policy is available on the website of the Company at https:/ /satinfinserv.com/practice-

policies/

However, as exempted under Section 135(9) of the Act, the Company was not required to constitute the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company strongly believes that sustainable community development is essential for harmony
between the community and the industry. Sustainability and social responsibility are an integral part of
the corporate strategy of the Company. The Board oversees the implementation of CSR Policy of the
Company. However, during the year under review, the Company was not required to make any
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contribution towards the CSR due to negative figures of average net profit of the Company during the
three immediately preceding financial year.

2. Risk Management Policy

Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The risk management process is
adopted and reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company on a regular basis which provides for
identification, assessment and control of risks. Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors
regularly review compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and analyses risk
exposure related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization.

The risk management framework covers integrated risk management, mainly comprising Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Operational Risk, Fraud Risk and other risks. The Credit Risk management structure includes
documented credit policies and procedures for each financial product and service of the business.

Risks associated with fraud are mitigated through the Board approved Fraud Risk Management Policy.
Fraud risk is monitored through oversight by senior management, who review matters relating to fraud
risk, including corrective and remedial actions with regard to people and processes.

3. Sexual Harassment Policy for Women under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company is committed to ensure fair environment for its executive, staff and workers. In compliance
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
(“POSH ACT") the Company has adopted Sexual Harassment Policy approved vide Board of Directors
which ensure free and fair enquiry process with clear timelines. The Company has duly constituted
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) as required under the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to review the cases related to sexual harassment. Your
directors further states that during the year under review, there was no case reported pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment to women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Also, in
order to comply with applicable laws, the annual return as required under POSH Act for calendar year
ended December 31, 2024, was filed with concerned authorities within the prescribed timelines.

The details of complaints relating to sexual harassment for the financial year are as follows:

e Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the year: Nil
e Number of complaints disposed off during the year: Nil
e Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: Nil

The Company maintains a zero-tolerance policy towards sexual harassment and ensures a safe and secure
working environment for all employees, particularly women.

4. Maternity Benefit Act 1961

The Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All eligible
women employees have been granted maternity benefits as per the entitlements under the act. The
Company remains committed to supporting and protecting the rights and well-being of women
employees.

5. Policy on Nomination & Remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Senior
Management and Other Employees
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In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay
equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other
employees of the Company, to have diversified Board, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources
consistent with the goals of the Company and in terms of Section 178 of the Act, as amended from time to
time and Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Notifications issued by RBI and SEBI from time to time. Your
Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which is also available at
https:/ /satinfinserv.com/ practice-policies/

6. Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud, unethical behavior and
mismanagement, if any. Whistle Blower Policy ensures that the activities of the Company and its
employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of the highest standards of
professionalism. The Whistle Blower Policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of people
and ensures that any employee, officer and director who violates the requirements of this policy will be
subject to disciplinary action. The Audit Committee reviews the functioning and complaint received under
Whistle Blower Policy, if any, on a quarterly basis. During the period under review, the Company has not
received any complaint under the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism.

7. Other Statutory Policies

The Company has all statutory policies as required under applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and applicable under SEBI, RBI guidelines.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE

Your Company has adhered to Board approved Fair Practice Code in terms of applicable RBI guidelines.
The Board approved Fair Practice Code covers the required disclosures and norms as required under
applicable RBI guidelines/directions. The Board periodically reviews the Fair Practice Code and its
functioning. The Board approved Fair Practice Code is disclosed on the website of the Company at
https:/ /satinfinserv.com/practice-policies/ Also, Fair Practice Code are being displayed at branches,
regional offices and where business is transacted.

CUSTOMER GRIEVANCE

The Company has a dedicated Customer Grievance team for receiving and handling customer
complaints/grievances and to ensure that the customers are always treated in a fair and unbiased manner.
All grievances raised by the customers are dealt with courtesy and redressed expeditiously.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable over the Company.

However, there are no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits as laid down under rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014. The form and
amount of director’s remuneration was recommended by the NRC to the Board for approval within the
maximum amount permissible under the law. Employee directors will not be paid for Board Membership
(sitting fees) addition to their regular employee compensation. The NRC will conduct a review of director
compensation on periodic basis to ensure directors of the company are compensated effectively in a
manner consistent with the strategy of the Company, and to further ensure that the Company will be able
to attract, retain and reward those who contribute to the success of the Company.
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LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

The Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement basis are listed on Wholesale Debt Market
Segment of Bombay Stock Exchange.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time
to time, the Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s
website on https:/ /satinfinserv.com/annual-returns/

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Being into the business related to financial services, provisions pertaining to conservation of energy are
not applicable. Further, there are no foreign exchange earnings(s) or outgo during the financial year 2024-
25. Further, pursuant to of the Act, read with sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the information is as follows:

Sr. Particulars Details
No
A) Conservation of energy Not applicable, in view

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy. of the nature of the
ii. the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate business of the
sources of energy. Company being
iii. the capital investment on energy conservation Financial Services.

equipment.

B) Technology absorption The Company is steadily
i. The efforts made towards technology absorption; ii. applying and adopting
benefits derived from like product improvement, cost technology to improve
reduction, product development or import substitution. services efficiently, and
iii. In the case of imported technology (imported during the Company has not
the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the imported any
financial year)- technology.

a. the details of technology imported;
b. the year of import;
c. whether the technology been fully absorbed;
d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not
taken place, and the reasons thereof; and
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development.
(@] Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Nil

MANAGEMNENT AND DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the provisions of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non- Banking Financial
Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023. The Management and

Discussion and Analysis Report forms an integral part of this report.

27



-
/‘I'.I

Satin Finserv Limited

RBI NORMS AND STANDARDS

The Company complies with the regulatory requirement of Net Owned Funds (NOF) as defined under
Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, read with Regulation 6 of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 to carry/continue its business as a
Middle Layer category NBFC.

The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and
guidelines issued by RBI such as Capital Adequacy, Net Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing
Assets and for Standard Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, filings, etc. Please refer to Note
no. 45 Notes to balance sheet for Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of the Company. In line with the
RBI guidelines for Asset Liability Management (ALM) system for NBFCs, the Company has an Asset
Liability Management Committee which meets periodically to review its ALM risks and opportunities.
The Company is also in compliance with the Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and other guidelines/circulars/directions
as issued by RBI from time to time.

DISCLOSURES UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Your Company has neither filed any application nor any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the reporting year, hence no disclosure is required under this section.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

The Company has not entered into a one-time settlement of any loan obtained from Banks or financial
institutions. Therefore, the details regarding the difference between the amount of the valuation done at
the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loans from the banks or financial
institutions.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors would like to place on record their gratitude for the cooperation received from lenders, our
valued customers and Members. The Board, in specific, wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation
of the contribution made by all the employees towards growth of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00333754 DIN: 00840544

Director Director

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Gurugram
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Annexure-1

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions:
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board:
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general Meeting as required under first proviso to section

188:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S. Name(s) of the
related party
and nature of
relationship

1. Satin
Creditcare
Network
Limited
(Holding
Company)

2. Mr. Varun
Shankardass
(Daughter’s
Husband of Mr.
Harvinder Pal
Singh, Non-
Executive
Director)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Sd/-

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
DIN: 00333754

Director

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Gurugram

Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Date(s) of Amount
contracts/ the contracts  contracts or arrangements or  approval paid as
arrangements / transactions including the by the advances,
/transactions arrangements value, if any Board, if  if any
/transactions any

To avail the 3 (Three)  SCNL would refer its July 24, NIL
Business years from  existing customers to SFL 2024
Correspondence effective who are interested in seeking
Services from date high-ticket loans, for which
SCNL (August 1,  SCNL should charge a fee

2024) and  based on cost, profit-margin

may be  with certain assumptionsi.e.

further INR 420/- (Indian Rupees

extended Four Hundred Twenty Only)

as plus applicable taxes for per

mutually successful case (‘Referral

decided in  Fee’), on the terms and

writing conditions mentioned in the

agreement
Appointment of N.A. N.A. September NIL
Mr. Varun 9, 2024
Shankardass as
Deputy Vice
President -
Product Strategy
and New
Initiatives in the
Company
Sd/-

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00840544
Director
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Annexure-2
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2025 (Form No. MR-3)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

Satin Finserv Limited

(CIN: U65999HR2018PL.C099128)

4t Floor, B Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to corporate practices by SATIN FINSERV LIMITED (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and made
available and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, in our
opinion we hereby report that, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions stated hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

i. ~ The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. ~ The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder-

iii. =~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings- Not applicable during the Financial Year under review;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable:

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;

¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;

d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2021- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;
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e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-
Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review; and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018- Not
Applicable during the Financial Year under Review;

vi.  The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to
the Company:

1. Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to
NBFCs-NDSI ICC which are specifically applicable to the Company.
2. Local laws as applicable to all its branches and offices.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses/ Regulations of the following;:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (‘SS-1") and General
Meetings ('SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and
(if) the Listing Agreements entered by the Company with BSE Limited.

We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Guidelines mentioned above.

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company
and also on the review of the compliances report of Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer/Whole
Time Director and Chief Executive Officer and respective departmental heads taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meetings and based on the review of the compliance mechanism
established by the Company, we are of the opinion that, adequate system and process exist in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

¢ Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except where consent of
directors were received for circulation of the agenda and notes on agenda at a shorter notice and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

e All decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with requisite majority.
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We further report that the Company is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 with respect to Structured Digital Database.

We further report that during the audit period the following specific events/actions have taken place in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above which
may have a major bearing on the company’s affairs:

¢ The Working Committee of the Board of Directors vide their meetings held on June 28, 2024,
August 30, 2024 and September 20, 2024, approved the allotment of 2500, 1999 and 2500 senior,
secured, rated, listed, redeemable, taxable non-convertible debentures having a face value of INR
1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty
Five Crores), 19,99,00,000 (Rupees Nineteen Crores Ninety Nine Lakhs) and 25,00,00,000 ((Rupees
Twenty Five Crores) respectively on a private placement basis;

e The members vide their AGM held on August 08, 2024 approved the appointment of M/s Rajeev
Bhatia and Associates, Chartered Accountant as Statutory Auditors for the term of 5 (five) years;

e The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on October 25, 2024, noted the resignation of Mr.
Gurvinder Singh as Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer (KMP) w.e.f. September 11,
2024

e The members vide their EOGM held on October 28, 2024 approved the appointment of Mr. Varun
Shankardass (Related Party) to hold office or place of profit in the Company;

o The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on January 16, 2025, approved the appointment of
Mr. Dhiraj Jha as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company w.e.f. January 17,2025, upon the
resignation of Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna as Whole-time Director & CEO of the Company w.e.f. January
16, 2025;

o The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on January 16, 2025, approved the appointment of
Ms. Sangam Jaiswal as Whole-time Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer of the
Company.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral
part of this report.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor

CP No. 5980

ICSI UDIN:F008428G000187521

Date: April 24, 2025
Place: New Delh
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To,

Annexure-‘A

The Members of

Satin Finserv Limited

(CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128)

4th Floor, B Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-1III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management’s Responsibility

1.

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared,
documents or records, in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are free from
misstatement.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company.

8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the Company.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor

CP No. 5980

ICSI UDIN:F008428G000187521

Date: April 24, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global Economy Overview

Following an unprecedented series of shocks in the
preceding years, global growth was stable yet
underwhelming through 2024. As the New Year
unfolds, the global economic trajectory continues to be
reshaped by a convergence of structural shifts, policy
realignments, and escalating geopolitical tensions. A
major disruption to the global economic order
emerged with the United States” enactment of broad-
based tariff measures, prompting swift retaliatory
actions from several major trading partners. These
developments culminated in the near-universal
imposition of tariffs effective April 2, 2025, driving
global tariff rates to historic highs not seen in over a
century. The unpredictability with which these
measures have been unfolding also has a negative
impact on economic activity and the outlook and, at
the same time, makes it more difficult than usual to
make assumptions that would constitute a basis for an
internally consistent and timely set of projections.

Intensifying downside risks dominate the outlook,
amid escalating trade tensions and financial market
adjustments. Divergent and swiftly changing policy
positions or deteriorating sentiment could lead to even
tighter global financial conditions. Ratcheting up a
trade war and heightened trade policy uncertainty
may further hinder both short-term and long-term
growth prospects. Scaling back international
cooperation could jeopardize progress toward a more
resilient global economy.

Global headline inflation is expected to decline at a
pace that is slightly slower than what was expected in
January, reaching 4.3 percent in 2025 and 3.6 percent in
2026, with notable upward revisions for advanced
economies and slight downward revisions for
emerging market and developing economies in 2025.
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Growth of the Global Economy (in %)

GROWTH OF THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

4.3
3.7 3.9
33
3
o 2.8
18 15
[ | —
World Advanced Economies Emerging Markets and
Developing Economies
™ 2024 2025* 2026*
*Projections

(Source: IMF’s World Economic Outlook, April 2025)
Outlook

A steady growth trajectory shapes the global economic
outlook for 2024, though regional patterns vary. The
near-term global growth is expected to be a shade lower
than the trend level. The services sector continues to
drive global expansion, with notable resilience in India.
Meanwhile, manufacturing is struggling in Europe,
where structural weaknesses persist. Trade outlook also
remains clouded in the next year.

Inflationary pressures have been easing globally, though
risks of synchronised price pressures linger due to
potential geopolitical disruptions, such as tensions in the
Middle East and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict.
Central banks have adopted more accommodative
monetary policies. However, the pace of rate cuts varies
across regions depending on the growth imperatives
and the pace of disinflation, creating potential
divergences in economic recovery

The path forward demands clarity and coordination.
Countries should work constructively to promote a
stable and predictable trade environment, facilitate debt
restructuring, and address shared challenges. At the
same time, they should address domestic policy and
structural imbalances, thereby ensuring their internal
economic stability. This will help rebalance growth-
inflation trade-offs, rebuild buffers, and reinvigorate
medium-term growth prospects, as well as reduce
global imbalances. The priority for central banks
remains fine-tuning monetary policy stances to achieve
their mandates and ensure price and financial stability
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in an environment with even more difficult trade-offs.
Macroprudential tools should be activated as needed to
contain the build-up of vulnerabilities and to provide
support in case of stress events. Restoring fiscal space
and putting public debt on a sustainable path remain an
important priority, while meeting critical spending
needs to ensure national and economic security. This
requires credible medium-term fiscal consolidation
plans. Structural reforms in labour, product, and
financial markets would complement efforts to reduce
debt and narrow cross-country disparities.

Indian Economy

In an era marked by escalating global trade tensions and
persistent  geopolitical —uncertainties, the
economy has demonstrated remarkable resilience and
robust growth. India has firmly established itself as the
world’s fourth-largest economy, surpassing Japan, with
an impressive GDP growth of around 6.5% in 2024-25.
This momentum was driven by strong pipeline of
government-led
sustained expansion in key sectors, including finance,
real estate, and construction. Additionally, targeted
financial inclusion measures and a robust agricultural
performance have supported rural demand, further
contributing to overall economic growth. Notably, in Q4
(Ist January 2025 - 31st March 2025) of 2024-25, India’s
real GDP surged by 7.4% year-on-year, the highest
quarterly growth of the fiscal year, driven by a sharp
activity,  particularly
manufacturing, mining, and construction, alongside a
significant uptick in net indirect tax collections. In its
June 6, 2025, policy review, the RBI executed a 50-bps
repo rate cut, bringing the rate down to 5.50%, and
simultaneously trimmed the Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR)
by 100 bps, injecting nearly INR 2.5 trillion of liquidity
into the banking system. This front-loaded easing,
building on earlier cuts of 25 bps in February and April,
signals a decisive pivot to rejuvenate growth. Inflation
has moderated, and policy measures have helped
stabilize market liquidity. However, foreign portfolio
outflows and currency depreciation remain key risks.

Indian

infrastructure investments and

rebound in industrial

India’s economic outlook for 2025 and 2026 remains one
of the brightest among major global economies, as
highlighted by the IMF. Despite global uncertainties and
downward revisions in growth forecasts for other large
economies, India is set to maintain its leadership in
global economic growth. With reforms in infrastructure,
innovation, and financial inclusion, India continues to
enhance its role as a key driver of global economic
activity. The IMF’s projections reaffirm India’s resilience,
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further solidifying its importance in shaping the global
economic future.

As the country aims to accelerate its economic growth
rate in the coming years, it has the tailwind of strong
balance sheets in the domestic corporate and financial
sectors. But globalisation is on the retreat. Hence, raising
the growth average in the next two decades will require
reaping the demographic dividend through a
deregulation stimulus. The domestic economy remains
steady amidst global uncertainties.

In this global context, India displayed steady economic
growth. Growth in the first half of FY25 was supported
by agriculture and services, with rural demand
improving on the back of record Kharif production and
favourable agricultural conditions. The manufacturing
sector faced pressures due to weak global demand and
domestic seasonal conditions. Private consumption
remained stable, reflecting steady domestic demand.
Fiscal discipline and strong external balance supported
by a services trade surplus and healthy remittance
growth contributed to macroeconomic stability.
Together, these factors provided a solid foundation for
sustained growth amid external uncertainties

(Source- https//www.pib.gov.in/ and Economic Survey
and Reuters)

Inflation

Retail inflation in India, as measured by the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), which reflects the cost of everyday
goods and services, fell to a remarkable 4.6% in the fiscal
year 2024-25, the lowest since 2018-19. This milestone
highlights the effectiveness of the Reserve Bank of
India’s pro-growth monetary policy, which has
successfully balanced economic expansion with price
stability. Notably, the year-on-year inflation rate for
March 2025 dropped to 3.34%, a decline of 27 basis
points from February 2025, marking the lowest monthly
inflation rate since August 2019.

Year on Year Inflation rate based on CPI

3.79
I 3.25 332 343 i 3.34
0 I I I I

Rural Urban Combd.

w

N

-

HFeb-25 mMar-25

(Source- https//www.pib.gov.in/)
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Future Projection

India is projected to remain the fastest-growing large
economy for 2025 and 2026, reaffirming its dominance
in the global economic landscape. The country’s
economy is expected to expand by 6.2 per cent in 2025
and 6.3 per cent in 2026, outpacing many of its global
counterparts. In contrast, the IMF projects global
economic growth to be much lower, at 2.8 per cent in
2025 and 3.0 per cent in 2026, highlighting India's
exceptional outperformance.

The growth trajectory for India’s non-banking finance
companies is set to decelerate, with asset growth
projected at 15-17% year-on-year (Y-o-Y) for FY25 and
FY26, compared to 23% in FY24. Despite the slowdown,
the projected growth remains above the decadal average
of 14%, driven largely by core segments such as home
and vehicle loans, according to CRISIL Ratings and
Fitch.

(Source-ETBFSI)

Outlook & Way Forward

A steady growth trajectory shapes the global economic
outlook for 2024, though regional patterns vary. The
near-term global growth is expected to be a shade lower
than the trend level. The services sector continues to
drive global expansion, with notable resilience in India.
Meanwhile, manufacturing is struggling in Europe,
where structural weaknesses persist. Trade outlook also
remains clouded in the next year. Inflationary pressures
have been easing globally, though risks of synchronised
price pressures linger due to potential geopolitical
disruptions, such as tensions in the Middle East and the
ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict. Central banks have
adopted more accommodative monetary policies.
However, the pace of rate cuts varies across regions
depending on the growth imperatives and the pace of
disinflation, creating potential divergences in economic
recovery. On the domestic front, rebounding rural
demand augurs well for consumption. Investment
activity is expected to pick up, supported by higher
public capex and improving business expectations.
Capacity utilisation in manufacturing remains above the
long-term average, and private sector order books have
shown steady growth, alongside a rise in investment
intentions. However, these gains could be tempered by
the global excess capacities in sectors such as steel,
leading to aggressive trade policies in search of demand.
- Good Rabi production is likely to contain food prices
in the first half of FY26. Adverse weather events and rise
in international agricultural commodity prices,

=/
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however, pose risks to food inflation. Global energy and
commodity prices have softened in the recent past,
making the core inflation outlook benign. However,
risks remain on account of significant global political
and economic uncertainties. In brief, there are many
upsides to domestic investment, output growth and
disinflation in FY26. There are equally strong,
prominently extraneous, downsides too. On balance of
these considerations, we expect that the growth in FY26
would be between 6.3 and 6.8 per cent. Navigating
global headwinds will require strategic and prudent
policy management and reinforcing the domestic
fundamentals.

(Source-PIB Retail Inflation)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:
DEVELOPMENT

STRUCTURE AND

Financial institutions play a pivotal role in shaping a
country's economic growth trajectory by facilitating
savings, investments, and credit for economic activities.
The prevailing monetary policies influence the interplay
between financial intermediation and economic growth.

The financial services sector in India exemplifies the
progress and potential of the economy. Projected to
grow significantly through 2035, this sector is driven by
increasing incomes, a strong government emphasis on
financial inclusion, and the widespread adoption of
digital technologies. By 2030, digital payments in India
are expected to surpass $1 trillion, highlighting the
sector's rapid evolution and future opportunities.

The loan growth of Indian Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) will moderate to 17 per cent in
FY25, down from 21 per cent in FY24, as stated in a
report. It was noted that this moderation is attributed to
weaker credit demand due to softer macroeconomic
conditions.

The reduced lending to unsecured and microfinance
loans (MFI), and a cyclical slowdown in segments such
as automobiles, has contributed to this moderation.

It is also noted that Asset Under Management (AUM)
growth for NBFCs is expected to slow to 20 per cent in
FY25, compared to 24 per cent in FY24. However, HFCs
may see improved AUM growth, rising to 12-13 per cent
in FY26 from 11 per «cent in FY24.

The report anticipated that economic activity would
improve in FY26, supporting the stabilization of growth
across the sector. Over the FY25-27 period, the coverage
AUM (excluding IIFL) is projected to grow at a

4,



compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 19 per cent,
slightly higher than the 18 per cent expected in FY25.
The growth in loans for Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs) has slowed to 20 per cent as of September 2024,
compared to 22 per cent in March 2024.

The report highlighted that the slowdown has been most
pronounced in unsecured personal loans, consumer
financing, and MFI loans, while other segments have
experienced relatively modest deceleration in growth
during the first half of FY25.

Incremental growth trends in 2025 are likely to vary by
segment. While growth in unsecured loans and MFI
loans is expected to remain subdued during the first half
of the calendar year, the report added that segments like
auto loans and others are likely to stabilize and
potentially pick up if macroeconomic conditions
improve as anticipated.

(Source- Economic Times)

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)
sector has emerged as a highly vibrant and dynamic
sector of the Indian economy contributing around 30%
of India’s GDP, over 45% of India’s exports. In the fiscal
year ending September 2024, the sector added 11 million
jobs bringing total employment to about 121 million
from 110 million in the previous fiscal. It is projected that
the MSME sector will grow to USD 1 trillion by 2028
providing immense and diverse opportunities across
industries and supply chain systems.

In FY 2024-25, the MSME sector recorded a robust
growth rate of around 13%, underscoring its expanding
role in the economy and its increasing contribution to
exports and manufacturing output. The government’s
sustained focus on initiatives such as the Credit
Guarantee Fund Scheme, Digital MSME platforms, and
improved access to finance has been instrumental in
driving robust growth in the MSME sector, enabling
small businesses to scale up and innovate. The key
programs launched during the year including the
Yashasvini Initiative, MSME-TEAM, and ZED 2.0
schemes have further empowered MSMEs by promoting
women entrepreneurship, accelerating digital adoption,
and enhancing quality standards. Collectively, these
initiatives play a crucial role in fostering inclusive
growth, expanding market access, and strengthening the
competitiveness of the sector.

Source: MSME Annual Report 2024-25, MSME Pulse by
TransUnion CIBIL and Daily Pioneer
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PESTEL ANALYSIS

The Indian financial sector operates within a complex
web of factors influencing its growth and stability. The
breakdown of these key influences can be done by a
PESTEL Analysis.

« Initiatives such as the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee
Scheme (ECLGS) in order to provide Liquidity support
to MSME:s and other sectors and Credit Guarantee Fund
schemes as launched by Department for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) create lending

Political opportunities and reduce credit risk and Credit

Factors Guarantee Fund Scheme for Skill Development to

promote collateral-free loans for skilling and vocational

training.

« Interest Rates: As of June 2025, the Reserve Bank o
India (RBI) has maintained the repo rate at 5.5%, which
influences loan interest rates offered by banks.

* Economic Cycles & Credit Risk: Slowdowns, increase
Economic NPA levels and stress collections, especially in
Factors unsecured or MSME loan segments. Conversely,
economic expansion boosts credit offtake. Y,
« Financial Inclusion Push: There is rising demand fo)
credit in underserved segments like rural, informal sector,

MSMESs which aligns with the SFL’s lending models.

* Trust and Transparency: After past defaults, customer

SIUEIRE S and investor confidence is tightly linked to perceived

governance and transparency of the Company. Y,

« Efficient Loan Journeys through Al: Advanced
technologies like AI and digital platforms streamline the
loan application and approval process, reducing approval

Technological . . .
e times and enhancing customer experience. )
~
* Green Lending Opportunities: NBFCs can diversify
portfolios into EV financing, solar energy loans, and
el other green finance products as ESG demand rises.
Factors )

* Scale-Based Regulatory Framework: The RBI’s 2021
framework imposes tighter norms like governance and
risk management.

* KYC & AML Regulations: Strengthening of

S SlB RS  compliance expectations around onboarding, reporting,
and monitoring customer behavior.
J
COMPANY OVERVIEW

SFL was incorporated as a limited company on August
10, 2018, under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act’) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Satin Creditcare Network Limited. Registered as a
Non-Banking Financial Company the company is
engaged in the business of loan to entrepreneurs,
MSMEs and individual businesses.

45



SFL has adopted a unique credit underwriting and
assessment model to understand the income source
and derive eligibility of the potential customers.

OUR OFFERINGS

Small Ticket Business Loan

Ticket size: Rs. 1.5 lakhs to Rs. 3.5 lakhs

Tenor: upto 60 months

Large Ticket Business L.oan

Ticket size: upto Rs. 500 lakhs

Tenor: upto 60 months

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

SFL had 47 branches of SME across 11 states. The
Company plans to continue its growth journey by
opening more branches and further investing in
technology to optimize operating costs and improve
collection efficiency.

OWNERSHIP & STRATEGIC FOCUS

The primary objective of SFL is to provide financing
solutions to the SME, MSME, and self-employed
segments. SFL's entry into the MSME and self-
employed loan segments addresses the significant gap
in access to organized finance for these groups. SFL
aims to bridge the financial inclusion gap and support
the growth and sustainability of SMEs and MSMEs in
India.

OUR STRENGTHS

> Secured lending against primary collateral

> Well tested & credit stabilized customer with high
credit score history

> Use of social scoring to defined entry Level Filter

> Cash flow analysis based on sales & credit personal
discussion in the absence of significant banking &
income documents

> Centralized credit system supported by automated
decisioning. Cash flow assessment based on
household consumptions -Score Card Matrix

» 3-fold control on profile checks (Sales PD, Credit
Video PD, pre-sighting) before disbursement

> Post disbursement sample field investigation
checks by external vendors
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> Approved Industry segments primarily centered

on Essentials and customized offering grids
according to industry segments

> E-Nach and E-Agreement features available to

support faster disbursement.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

> In FY 2024-25, the Company’s loan portfolio

witnessed healthy growth, supported by continued
geographic expansion, while maintaining stable net
profit margins.

Strategic  investments in  technology and
strengthened credit assessment frameworks have
significantly improved operational efficiency and
enhanced the overall customer experience.

The disbursements during the year stood at Rs.
34,789.53 lakhs, reflecting a robust year-on-year
growth of 58.6%.

The Company’s AUM grew by 9.3% YoY to reach Rs.
54,767.55 lakhs. Notably, the retail SME segment
demonstrated strong performance, with AUM
increasing by 58.2% YoY to Rs. 51,631.84 lakhs. The
Company continues to prioritize growth in its retail
portfolio.

The GNPA & NNPA as of Mar'25 stood at 4.84% &
2.86% reflecting robust portfolio quality

The Company maintains a strong and diversified
funding base with 21 active lenders, including banks,
impact funds, and financial institutions; added 6 new
lenders during the period under review.

The CRAR stood at a healthy 37.6% as of Mar’25;
indicating a strong capital position.

Credit Rating of A- (Stable) from ICRA.

(In Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Revenue from 12,470.80 11,901.04
Operations

Other Income 190.91 239.47
Total revenue 12,661.71 12,140.51
Expenses

Employee Benefit 4,717.02 5,755.34
expenses

Impairment on 1,328.66 358.23
financial

instruments

Finance cost 4,007.32 2,643.63
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Depreciation and 187.89 156.44
amortization

expenses

Other expenses 1,362.52 2,523.35
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit before Tax 1,058.30 703.52
Less: Tax Expenses 313.02 188.75
Profit after Tax 745.28 514.77
Add: Other 0.41 (3.24)
comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive 745.69 511.53
income

Earnings per share

Basic 047 0.36
Diluted 047 0.36

During the year under review, the Company reported
a profit after tax of Rs. 745.28 lakhs, compared to Rs.
514.77 lakhs for the previous year, resulting in an
increase of 44.78%. This increase can be attributed to a
4.29% increase in total revenue, which rose from Rs.
12,140.51 lakhs to Rs. 12,661.71 lakhs, coupled with a
1.46% increase in total expenses, which grew from Rs.
11,436.99 lakhs to Rs. 11,603.411lakhs.

FUNDING PROFILE

SFL continues to strengthen its funding framework
through  well-calibrated
instruments and lender categories enhancing stability.
On the product side, Term Loans remained the
backbone of the funding mix at 52%, NCDs at 21% and
PTC at 27%. On the lender side, share of Domestic
Institutions stood at 73%, Banks at 6% and Others at
21%, signalling access to a broader lender base.

diversification  across

STRONG RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is a pivotal element of SFL.
Acknowledging risks is an inherent component of the
business landscape, therefore, the Company focuses on
effective risk mitigation. SFL follows a comprehensive,
enterprise-wide risk management framework, that is
adept at identifying and analysing risks promptly and
providing proactive measures to manage potential
impacts effectively.

The Company is governed by the Board and supported
by a dedicated Risk Management Committee, seeking
to balance risk and return optimally, fostering
sustainable value creation for stakeholders.

e~ 7
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Operational Risk

Operational risks are mitigated through robust internal
control systems and continuous procedural monitoring
to ensure process integrity throughout the
organization. Clear segregation of duties is
maintained, supported by stringent access controls,
protocols, and
mechanisms. The digitization of credit operations has
significantly ~reduced dependency on manual
processes, thereby minimizing errors and enhancing

authorization reconciliation

efficiency. Furthermore, proactive measures are in
place to detect and prevent organizational frauds,
while dedicated oversight mechanisms address
collection slippage to safeguard financial stability and
maintain portfolio quality.

Liquidity Risk

The Company adheres to a robust Liquidity Risk
Management framework to ensure the timely
availability of funds at optimal costs for meeting
financial obligations and supporting business growth.
Liquidity risks are actively monitored by the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO), which
utilizes a dynamic Asset Liability Management (ALM)
framework. This framework enables efficient
management of maturity mismatches between
financial assets and liabilities, ensuring a stable and
well-balanced liquidity position under varying market

conditions.
Credit Risk

The Company has established a comprehensive credit
risk management framework, underpinned by well-
defined policies, procedures, and advanced analytics
to strengthen credit decision-making. By leveraging
machine learning tools for real-time data analysis, the
Company effectively borrowers'
creditworthiness with greater precision and speed. An
independent internal audit team ensures strict

evaluates

adherence to regulatory and internal compliance
Additionally, testing
mechanisms perform sensitivity analyses to identify
and monitor potentially vulnerable accounts, enabling
proactive risk mitigation.

standards. robust  stress

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is managed through a strategic
balance of asset-liability durations and the adoption of
diversified funding sources. This approach optimizes
the Company’s borrowing profile, reduces interest
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costs, and enhances the stability of funding under
varying rate environments.

Regulatory Risk

The Company maintains proactive regulatory
compliance by continuously monitoring changes in the
legal and regulatory environment. Internal systems
and operational practices are promptly updated to
align with new directives, ensuring adherence while
preserving business continuity and integrity.

IT and Data Risk

IT and data risks are overseen by the IT Strategy
Committee, which ensures alignment between
technology initiatives and business objectives. The
Company’s risk mitigation strategy addresses
cybersecurity threats, enforces data protection
protocols, and ensures continuous upgrades to IT
infrastructure in line with regulatory and industry
standards.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always prioritised providing its
employees with a discrimination-free environment
that promotes diversity and inclusion.

Employee-centricity has always been a paramount
concern for the organization, and your Company has
implemented various policies and initiatives to ensure
the well-being of its employees. These include
provisions such as advance against medical exigency
leaves, Satin Sahyog, Satin Ease, and Satin Suraksha,
Satin Leave Bank leaving no stone unturned in
prioritizing employee welfare. Frequent training
programs and extra curriculum activities are
conducted by the Company to enhance the skills and
capabilities of its workforce and to motivate the
employees.

SFL has a robust framework for employee engagement
that facilitates the development and retention of a
highly motivated team. To strengthen the Company’s
journey into the future, it is providing specialised
training to its employees in accordance with its
mission and strategy. The training and development
initiatives of the Company enable employees to
acquire the technical and behavioural skills necessary
for their professional and personal development. As of

e Z
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March 31, 2025, the Company employed total no. of
1,022 individuals, including 31 women employees.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal control system is designed to
ensure operational efficiency, protection and
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in
financial reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations. The internal control system is supported
by an internal audit process for reviewing the
adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal
controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. Your
Company have proper Maker Checker system in all
departments. The Statutory Auditors also review and
comment on the internal financial controls in its report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document contains forward-looking statements
and information that are based upon the Company's
expectations and various assumptions at the time of
writing. These statements inherently involve risks and
uncertainties. If any of these risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should the underlying assumptions
prove incorrect, the actual outcomes may significantly
differ from those projected. The Company expressly
disclaims any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements in this document, should
the future developments deviate from those initially
anticipated.
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Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,
A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009
9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

To,

The Board of Directors,

Satin Finserv Limited,

Plot no. 492, Wing-4B, Udyog Vihar, Phase-ill,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016

Sub: Master Direction ~ Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We, Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, have audited the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2025 and have issued our report dated April 25, 2025,

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company referred to above and information | explanations and
representations received from the management, we confirm the following particulars:

(A) In the case of all Non-Banking Financial Companies

1. The company has obtained a Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

2. The company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of Its Principal Business Criteria (Financial
assetfincome pattern) as on March 31, 2025,

3. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction - Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and amendments thereon from
time to time.

(B) In the case of a non-banking financial companies accepting/holding public deposits

Being a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, para (B) of Chapter |l of Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(€) In the case of a non-banking financial company not accepting public deposits
We further confirm that:
1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any nublic deposits dated April 22, 2024,

2. As per our verification of books of accounts and further explanation and information produced before us, we
confirm that the Campany has not accepted any public deposits during the firancial year ended March 31, 2025.

3. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset

classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Master D[rectton - Reserve
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, : e

Statutory Auditor’s Certificate to the Board of Directors of SATIN FINSERV LIMITED for FY 2024-25
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4. The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form DNBS-03, has been correctly
arrived at and is In compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed. The company has furnished the return within the
stipulated period.

5. On the basis of our verification and further explanation and information as produced before us, we confirm that
the Company has been registered with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A under the category — Loan Company.
Accordingly, classification as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MFI) as defined in the Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 is not applicable to the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

(D) In the case of a company engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution not required to hold CoR
subject to certain conditions

Para (D) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Chapter Il of Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, solely for the purpose
of enabling it to comply with the requirement of the Master Directions which inter alia requires it to submit the
certificate by the Statutory Auditors to Board of Directors and should not be used, referred to of distributed for any
other purposes without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability if it is to be
used for other than its intended purpose without our prior written consent.

Place of Signature: Delhi For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: April 25, 2025 Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

UDIN -

Statutory Auditor’s Certificate to the Board of Directors of SATIN FINSERV LIMITED for FY 202425 Page2af2
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Satin Finserv Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs™) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the financial statements and our
Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditors’ Report of SATIN FINSERV LIMITED for FY 2024-25 Page1ofs
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information [s materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and cornpleteness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa. '

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
Jesign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
jons, or the override of internal contrel.
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(b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circurnstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with respect to Financial Statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. '

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underiying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (if) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India In terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

Page3of 5
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements-

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company did not have any pending litigations which impacted its financial position as at March 31,
2025;

(i) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025;

(i)  therewere no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025;

(iv)  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
aterial either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
ity, including foreign entity (““Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
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or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 1i(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement

As per the information and records provided to us by the company, no dividend has been declared or
paid during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which displays the dates
of creation and authorisation of the transaction keeping the system date as a base and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

- 4;
/ /Q}“ —\‘
%)
i hatia DELHI &

Partrler
Membership No.: 039018; ‘\‘H_,
UDIN - Lo

Place:
Date: April 25,2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date of Satin Finserv Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use assets and Intangible Assets

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets on the basis of
available information.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company were physically verified
as at the year-end by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where
the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in the favor of lessee) under Property,
plant and equipment in its name as on March 31, 2025 and during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(i) Inventories & Working Capital Limit
a) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories, Thus, paragraph

3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i 5-“!‘0}«\:ompany does not have a working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, sanctioned from any bank or

\Y

/DJ\ According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Ao

ancial institution on the basis of security of current assets during the year and as on March 31, 2025.
E,?nce, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(iii) Loans granted by company

a)

b)

<

d)

e)

f)

The Company is registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(jii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, we are
of the opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans in nature of loans and advances, during the
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest have generally been
regular as per stipulation, Since the Company is an NBFC, and considering the significant volume of
transactions with number of borrowers, furnishing the number of cases of default is practically not feasible.

In respect of loans granted by the company, the details of total amount overdue above 9o days are as
follows:

No. of cases Principal Amount | Interest Overdue | Total Overdue (in | Remarks ]
Overdue (inRs.) | (inRs.) Rs.) |
1929* 7,51,72,712.00 3,84,16,192.00 11,35,88,904.00 | NIL |

*excluding restructured cases
The company is taking reasonable steps for the recovery of principal and interest overdue amount.

The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or

without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f)
is not applicable.

(iv) Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect
of loans granted, to the extent applicable.

(v) Acceptance of Deposits

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the year. There are no

<
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deemed deposits under the provisions of the Act and rules thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Maintenance of Cost records

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by
the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) Payment of Applicable Taxes

a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutery dues including
income-tax, goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and
other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) Undisclosed income

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
“assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) Dues to a Financial Institution or bank or debenture holder

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of Interest thereon
to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable

b)  Based on the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
- Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of recards, funds
raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Initial Public Offer

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable

b)  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, during
the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xi) Fraud by the Company or on the Company

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b)  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company
during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) Nidhi Company
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
s the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
DA where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
5:‘ LHI required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.
[
&
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‘xiv) Internal Audit

a)  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, in
our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Non - Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

'xvi) Registration with RBI

a) The Company was required to be regjstered under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) as an NBFC and has been registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC).

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) As per the information and explanation provided to us by the company, there is not more than one CICin
the group (in accordance with the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

xvii) Cash Losses

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not incurred any Cash Losses during the year and the immediately preceding financial year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvil) of the Order is not applicable.

xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditor

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. Hence the reporting
underclause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

= pe= 1:.
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(xix) Material Uncertainty about the Company's Capability to discharge its liabilities

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors’ and Management’s plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a peried of one year from the balance
sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are applicable on the company. However, considering average profit
for last 3 years, amount required to be spent under C5R is nil. Accordingly, there are no unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing or other than ongeing projects requiring a
transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Act In compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5)
of section 135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order is not
applicable of the company.

(xxi) Qualification or Adverse Remarks by the respective auditors

Since the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements, the reporting under this
clause is not applicable to the company.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 821776N

3,

/'S/“'_‘ .

% (&
|3
Rajeev Bhatia ‘\?é’

Partner ers, y
Membership No.: 089018 ~
UDIN -

e

Place: Delhi
Date: April 25,2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Satin Finserv Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (‘IFCoFR’)
of the Company as at that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We Lelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6.A compary ’s IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

ard the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
finciples. A company’s IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that:

=
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and falrly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the
Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

e
m
s

Raje@y Bhatia 3
Partner \’)
Membership No.: oagma\\ 2d Actd
UDIN -

Place: Delhi

Date: April 25, 2025
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(A amouars in T in bikhs, uoless dtared otherwisg)

i As ar Asat
Pk Rk Murch 31,2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Finanuial assets
{Zash and eash equivulinte 4 0354 5,485,806
Park halanees othee than cash and eash equivalents 5 10299 3,050.60
Teade meetivaliis i ir2 Y04
L+ wnis T SR1095 xmrn
Chthier financial assets 8 1,187.52 BOE.35
#0,724.02 42,871.76
Mon Financial assets
Current tax assels (net) 9 L9652 92373
Deferred tax assers (ier) |} 23709 1,1¥50,99
Property, Plant and FEquipment 11 60241 33194
Intnpmble asscrs 12 538 236
Capital Works-ip-Progress 124 - 221
Other nnn Ananeial assers 13 820.78 575.09
347118 2,933.36
TOTAL 64,195.20 45,805.12
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Luabilities
Payables
Treacde payables 14
tonal wotstnding dues of MSMlis 4347 1378
tewal puataranding diws of eroditers ather than MSMEs 199,94 11328
Deht securitics 15 ROT400 195213
Borrowmgs (other than debt securities) 10 34, 885,40 2345930
Orher financral ubities 17 0114 32
44,403.80 25,78L.70
Mon Financial Liabilities
Peovislons 18 G661 163622
Other non-fimancial habilities 19 106,05 10815
766.66 1,744.37
EQUITY
Equity share caputal 20 15,755.79 15,755,719
Ohther equity 21 326495 251326
19,024.74 18,279.05
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 64,195.20 -15'805.1.2

Thie accampanying notes are an integeal part of the fnaneial statements,
As per-our review teport of even date attached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates

Chartered Accountants Satin Finsery Limited
Firm's Registration Mo.: 021776N

£

Harvinder Pal Singh
[DIN: (333754

Chief Excentive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Arjyn Bansal
wl

Chief Financiul Officer
Place: Gurugrm Place : Gurugram
Date: Apnil 25, 2025 Date: April 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcwors of m

-~
8 Kumar Mehta
DIN: 0840544
Director
Place ; Gurugram

»

a&"ﬂ""’“ Sr’. “'
Sangam Jaiswal

Mem Noo A44284

Campany Secrerary & CCO
Place : Gurugrum
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

(AL amensnts in T in lakhs, unless stanesd otherwise)

For the period ended For the year ended -
Purticulars Not
N Sorks Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
Tisterest meome 2 10,245.59 6,547.50
Fees and conmission income N 212904 5,289,531
Net gain on fair value changes 24 06,17 64.23
Total revenue from operations 12,470.80 11,901.04
Other incame 25 1940.91 239.47
Total income 12,661.71 12,140.51
Expenses:
Finunce costs 26 400732 2643460
Trnpivment on financial instrments v 132866 35425
Empleyee benefits expense .3 4 717.02 5,755.34
Depreciacion and amortizason expense 2 187.49 15644
Other expenses 30 1,302.52 250035
Totl expenses 1L,603.41 11,436.99
Profit / (logs) before exceptional items and ax 1,058,30 703,52
Esceptional items = -
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,058,30 703.52
Prior period items
Tax expense
Current tas 15927 15041
Mat eredit unilzation (entitiemient) (net) M8 {150,411
Defesred tax expinse/ {credit ‘ 11937 184.21
Fadicr yoars fax . 453
Total tax expense 313.02 188,75
Net profit/ (loss) for the period 745.28 514.77
Other comprehensive income
Ttem that will not o be reclassified o profit or loss
Ri-measurement gains/ losses) an definad benefit plans .56 (449)
Tneoma tax celating o these items (0.16) 125
Other comprehensive income/(Joss) for the period 0.41 (3.24)
Totl comprehensive incame / (loss) for the period 745.69 51153
Eamingd per share (basic and diluted) (in Ks.)
Basic (Rs.) 047 0346
Deluted (Hs) 047 0,34
The: pccompanyitg notes axe an inpegral past of die financial staemenrs.
As per vor review seport of cven duse artached
For Rajeev Bhatia & Associares. For and on bebalf of the Board or‘Dim:wm
Chirered Accountiants Sarin Finserv Limited
Firm's Ilcgismnon Nn/,._ﬂ]m_&i Q -
Harvinder Pal Singh Surd€ep Kumar Mehta
DIN: (0333754 DITIN: DUE0544
irccror, A Director
: Place : Gurugram
Igﬂ.\.ﬂ ] "l{"’}_—-ﬂ I
Sangam Jaiswal -
Mem No: A44284
Chief Executive Officer  Company Secrctary & CCO
Place : Gurugram Place ; Gumgram
A'Kn Bansal
Chi.cftilmnch] Officer
Place: Gurgram Place : Gurugram

Dae: Aprl 25, 2025

Dare: April 25, 2025



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Cash Now stasement for the perod ended March 31, 2025
(Al aaniasts i 2 dakhs, wnless stsed ptherine)

Farviculam Far the petiod ended For the period ended
March3 U238 Mach3hod
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profis [ (Lusa) before tak I, [55.30 TS
Adjustmeriis for:
Provisen fier expoctod coodit josies L3 0 LLREY
Prosiswn for emplopee benefiss 2593 (37,00
Tiepeeciation mad ixation cap TS Bl
Diepeecition of ROU aspers LL%l 75318
Toored (gam) un disponnt aif teogihle asets (4.5% (H467)
Tenerest puml on hortowngs A,1th6.30 27116
Qperating Profit/ (loss) Before Warking Capital Changes 5,RRA.93 3580.62
Chiangen in worldng capital:
Aditrmees fur (oceraself decenans i apaciiive anvebe
Tode socemvables noeg 3.81)
Orhiet baok bulances 1,266.70 (Fom.28)
Fistanen! Avsets {19, 262.5%) (10, 158,04)
{ther Financial ansen L7} {206,27)
Ohflaer aon fimmcn] et 1244658 {285,15)
Aty for wergly i in wentin Sabiiier;
Trale payables 1608 [Ty
Uhiher fuisncal nhdines saz {28.37)
Othset non financial lisbiises 210 48
Trovieom {1,000.98) 1214
Movemedt in operaring assers and linbilines (19,08107) (11,465.64)
Canly generated from operationg (13, 12 14) [7.876.02)
Loasi Lncome tax refusid / fpasd) (ned) (33206} (B
Met cadl Bow/ (used) in operating activities (A) Iuy] gi‘!s‘ml}
1. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchae of propeay, plst sl equipmen {54501} (2RRT)
Sale of peupeety, plant aul cquipiment wHan Wii.za
Luventrent i Pass thronipl Cerfieaes -
Net cash wned in investing sctivities (B) 5755 (180.81)
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Trsnie i ety share capital (nee of msue orpomses) A0
Reepairien| of birrowitys (13,644.68) (15 3490000)
Procends fom baerags 3300042 171762
Intereat paul on bormowmgs UMY 2,7
Payment of eese Yabiliey 1A250 il
Neeeaul How fiom financing sevivitdes [{%] HAILTS LACIETN
Net (Decroase) flueserse in cash wnd cash equivalents (A+1I+C) 519,98 1,673
Cash and canh eqsrvalenos a1 e bojnimng of the yeu 545 Ho LA1E4T
Cash andd cosh cquivalents at the end of the year G,005.54 BA85.80
Reconciliation of cash and cath equivalents as per the cash 1008 130
Tlow starement
The accompanyiryg miotes ase an iicgeal pagt of the Francal soement
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other expianatory information for the period ended
Mazch 31, 2025

Company 0verview / Corporate Information

Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company and incorporated on August 10, 2018, under the
provisions of Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND') and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC') with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in
January 09, 2019. The main objective of the Company to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Company
and to undertake business relating to financing. The Company is also engaged in the business of “Business
Cortespondent” activity with various Banks and NBFCs, As per Reserve Bank of India (RBIY), scope of activity of
Business Correspondent services includes Identification of Borrowers, collection and preliminary processing of loan

applications including verification of primary information, processing and submission of applications to banks,.

promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint Liability Groups, post-sanction menitoring, follow-
up for recovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of principal/collection of interest. The Company is
domiciled in India and its registered office & corporate office is situated at 4th Floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog
Vihar, Phase-1T1, Gurugram, Haryana - 122016.

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA”) under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
ather relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial starements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are the financial statements, which has been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI’).

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 25, 2025,

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained
in relevant accounting policies.

Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised as below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition o Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognation and initcal measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s cartying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred and the cost of item can be measured relinbly, The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Satin Finsetv Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025 . .

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, nsefirl lives and restdual value)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impainment

* losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life

b)

of the assets as preseribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule TI of the Companies Act, 2013,

Asset class Useful life
Office equipment 5 years
Computer and accessories — end user devices 3 years
Computer and accessories — network equipment | 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Plant and machinery 6 - 15 years

Depreciation 1s calculated on pro ram basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or ull the date the asset
1s sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year,

De-recopnition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to
acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to intended use are also shown under capital work-
in-progress.

Intangible assets

Recognition and intral measursment

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from txation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and dicectly artributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent measurement (amortisalion)

Intangible assets arc amortised over a period of 3 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The
estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any.

Revenue recognition

Interest, adwanistration and other charges (for loans)

Interest, administration and other charges received are recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR}
method along with the consideration of transaction cost directly attributable to the creation of financial instrument
being Loan Asset. Additional interest/overdue interest/penal charges are recognised only when itis reasonable certain
that the ultmate collection will be made.

Compmission tncose

Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the services are rendered agfiARS
g copditions of the contract.

7 S

A
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025

Dividend incomse
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.

Other Charges related to Operation

The Company collect other tharges ie. login fee, documentation charges, overdue interest, Cheque bounce charges,
prepayment charges, conversion charges, document retrieval charges, Foreclosure charges cte from all the borrowers
based on event, and recognise this income on collection basis.

Miseellaneons income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/collection.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, are capitalized during
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method,

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Curtent tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Minimum alternate tax (MAT?) credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit
becomes cligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably cettain that nermal income tax will be paid
during the specified period.

Defetred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be ualised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-
taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where

the absgices are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
dsepated service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve moaths after the end of the periog{a '
) &)
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025

employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as
under:

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where
in the employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary.
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to
the employee’s length of service and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Beaefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in
other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to avail after
one year from the Balance Sheet darte is estimated in the basis of an actarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past
expenencr: and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such
gains or losses are determined.

Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited (Parent
Company’) Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vestng period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Parent Company’s equity shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs,

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate thar refle
marku'assas.;menrs of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU,
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025 :

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a prorata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Impairment of financial assets
Loan assets

The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition
as summarsed below:

e A financial instrument that is not credi-impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1" and has its credit
risk continuously monitored by the Company i.e. the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

¢ If a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to ‘Stage 2° but is not yer deemed to be credit-impaired ie. the default in repayment is within the range
of 31 to 90 days.

o [f the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’ Le. the default
in repayment is more than 90 days.

“The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage
2 and Stage 3 loan assets ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given
Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelthood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation
(as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired™ above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over
the rematning lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of callateral or other
credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of
default. For a revolving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that
is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and
lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed onan
ongoing basis.

Otber financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition, If the eredit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected eredit losses, else at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses.

-making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over

ancialasset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring
\C\
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025 .

asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that s available without undue cost or efforr, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit rigk since ininal recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options o extend ot terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company’s operations taking into account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future perods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the
existing lease contracts.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i1) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and

(1) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease atrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the exclusive options o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
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lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumula:cd depreciation and impairment losses. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.c. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asser basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) 1o which the asser belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present vahue of the famre lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using rthe interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.
The Company as a lessor

The company does not have any leases as 4 lessor.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard 1o all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the prospective method and has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and corresponding right of use asser at the same value.
Due to the prospective method applied, the comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 will continue
to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended March 31,
2019.

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 10 the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as 2 result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the cucrent best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the
time value of money is material

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
¢ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or

¢ Present obligations arising from past events whese it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virmally certain, related
asset is disclosed.

Financial instruments

Inatiad recognition and measurement
Fmanmi assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to_theeaqiractual
ionsof the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transactiog - ;

m _"q;teﬁ'fentaf 1ancial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
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Non-derivative financial asscts

Subs equent medsurement

i.  Financial assets carried at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, '

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in mutual funds — Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contracrual cash flows
other than teade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of finandal assels

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liabiliry is replaced by another from the same lender on substanually different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the dc recognmon of
the original liability and the recognition of a new linbility. The difference in the respective carpueg BRypants is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. :

Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and ﬁ.nancia[ liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profitor loss for the punud atttbutable to equity sharcholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus

issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost
associated) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts
are regularly by the executive management (‘chief operating decision maker’) in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting ate line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segment reveaue, segment espenses, segment asscts and segment Liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the intemmal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker, The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company is responsible for allocating tesources and
assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly identified as the chief operating decision maker.
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common 1o the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case
may be.

Share issue expenses

All the expenses pertaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the
extent any balance is available for utilisation in securities premium account.

Guarantee contracts

First loss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails t© make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of service or non-observance, by
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as Business Correspondent’.

On each reporting date, Liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the
terms of agreements and any subsequent mutal consent with respective business pariers.

Further, the maximum liability against these guarantee contracts are restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the
agreements with respective business partners.
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March 31, 2025

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.
Actual results may differ from these estimares.

Segnificant management judgensents

Recogﬁition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recopnized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the furure taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which conld result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assers.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL?) = The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about fumre economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant
judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss:

®  Determining criteria for significant increase in credir risk;

» [Hstblishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

® Hstablishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Stgnificant estimater

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument,

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncerraiaties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets,

Defined benefit ebligation (DBO) = Maragement’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying

assumptions such as standacd rates of infladon, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Vasiation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
MNutes tor the financtal statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al msmounts i 8 i lakhs, waless stated otherwise)

MNote 4: Cash and cash equivalents

. As at As at
Pl Murch 31,2025 | March 3, 2024
Balance with banks w curment accounty 240783 1,341,600
Canky mn hamed M L8
Peporsits with origwial nanuity of lesy than 3 mondw JA3TE 364538
Toral of cash and cash equival 5,005,584 54R5.K6

Note! Theee are no repatsiation reserennons with respect 1o cash i canh spuivalents s 4t the end of the reporring yesr and cosguetive yexes,
Note S:lank b other than cash and cash equival

& M As at

P i
B Maech 31,2005 | March 31, 2024
Termn depisits for cemmming nuasnry of 3 months or les
Termmi deposits with seomsmmy ety moee than 3 mumitls bat lesi than 12 months am
Term depomits having remaiomg maturiny of more than | yoe .
Balsice yith hanks sad Goancial iahabions w0 the exteat held as aaigin weiney deposis igsmst Burremg and
sponenmes/ agtine firat Joss/sccond loma iefull garanices 209095 395,00
Total 2,692.99 £,959.69
Mot 6: Trade receivables (at amocised cost)
Asat As ar

B March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivables
Revervables consudenad pood - umsecund™ 1172 REFR
Less: Provision for unpaiment on bade receivibles -

ey § 337,644
(I1) Other Roceivables
Cihee Recennbles 1
Lesw: Provvsion for fmpairment on other recevvaliles
Total 17.712 33746
“Thased on past Timmey of reoevables, Mansgeeent eonmiderod Nl allowances toveseds coevit Jusses

Note 7: Loan portfolio (at amortised cont)

dcub As up Asat
e March 31,2028 | March 31, 2024
Portfolio loans
Secueed EEALLE) 200ET40
Unnecured 300043 3,833,006
Lesas [ampavmmint ks allowanea (133394 (IG6R, K4

EXI 2za)
Toral 50,419.95 | 2,00 |
() Secured by propesty 4815305 BITT N
(in) Secueed by book debi 1A 25002
(i) Lhnisecnind 300043 FR35. 0
Total - Gross 52,153.89 ILEGLOG
s Dompasement hiss allowars (1.333.94) (608 B
Toral - Net SA18.95 zinn
Livins in Tndia
(1) Public Sceror = -
(1] Oehers A2 15000 32 Rl
Total - Gross 52,153.89 3LE6L06
1.cxx Imparment loss allowance {1.333.94) (GR R4
Total - Net 50,819.95 2ian
e abore ameunt schades the merer scorued and euchide umamornied loen pencesning fees, o foflovws:
Particulars
Ineesest aecured Wiz 56744
Lnmomised logn precetiing fee #3928 i
# Theee are no ke or advances sepapible on demand vor wirhout pecifying any el or period of nopayent of tie related parties

\&,,
N ;
280 AvoodS
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Nutes 1o the finaneial stacements for the pedod ended BMarch 31, 2025
(AT armessits o ¥ dai lakdia, unbess stated otherwise)

Note 8t Other financial sssets (at amordsed curt)

Particulars AS o AL
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sevunty deposits (uisocured, ennadesed good) 2815 M3
Seaff advance nnd othor recoverabile L 35,6
Cinher reeoverible 1,147.03% 482
Unbilled revenns 1.5 121.04

L1B7.52 85655

Nare % Current tix assets (net)

As at As ot
Particul: ]
s March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Adtvance meome-tia asd TDS eecenvable 110652 9273
1.006.52 92473
Note 1 Defereed tax assets (ner)
An at Asat
witems March 3L 2025 | March 31,2024
Tax effect of iveas constituting deferred vix assets:
(8) Prewaman for Eoployee benefits 4119 on
k) Deprecation ani smormstin W36 174
{ed Camed Fooward Losses . 541
(€} tovpact of InilAs 116 658 00
() Allewanice for expecred credst logs 51369 607.29
L) Mistiomm sftcmae s crodi comdement MTI5 37245
(b)) Measyrement of fnancial assets o fnancl balniies s smemised cost 032 (L
LIER T 1,104.27
Tax effect of foms ituting deferved tax liabiliti
(1) Peermon dor 36(1)(viin) 1107 1328
1Lo7 13.28
Deferred tax usiets/ (liabilities) (net) 937.05 1,090.9%
Notes:
(i) Moyement in deferred rax assens/ (abilities) for period ended March 1, 2025
e A PR InT a"“’“""""" - Asat
cul comprehensive wuarement of pro
Musrch 31, 2024 tncome e March 31, 2025
Tax effect of irers constimting deferred v assem:
(a) Prowaion for Enplayee benelis 334N T2 4114
1) Diprecaton and smeortsstion 3354 42 RHETA
{6} Corneed Frrewand Lot 341 (33.41)
(d) Tonpact of TndAs 116 3 . 308 698
(el Proovmmnon for fieee Inss defaile guscanice 60729 (U360 S13.40
() M i tax eredit entith 37145 . 270 755
(i) Blegsupemient of fnancnl sssers ol Amncn| fatihies 5 smonised cost 000 056 .30
LIW27 - (156.12) MR.I6
Tax effect of items constinuring deferred vax Habilities:
) Prowisin for 36(T) (v 1328 @21 1147
1328 - @20 o
MNet deforred tax asser M.ﬁ - (153.91) HI7.00
(if) Movement in deferred tax assets/ lnbilitics) for year ended March 31, 2024:
Particulars s hm’:ih sl fymt
oo, RATVE ta nt of profir
Musch 31, 2023 s e lm" March 31, 2024
Tax effect of items constituting deforred tax asvetn
(a} Provision for Emplogor beochis 3346 125 mry 3108
(b} Diepreciation ad amcrsstion 29.58 - e [ 3374
(6 Camad Fomwaed Loases one9 [249.35) s34t
(d) Lot of Dol 115 187 - 14 3o
(&) Prowasmons fioe firet bons default maranice 33500 . TR0 &7
(1) Manianuon aligmate e credas onaikleroent 1345 - 15041 371348
[t} Measueenment of fuancnd assets and financial lnbibities 4 amoetscd cost 312 - .13 (o)
1,129.46 L25 (20.42) 1,104.27
Tax effect of itemy constituting deferred tax Habilities:
() Teuasion for 36(1)(vies) 91 : .3 132K
591 . 7.37 1338
Net deferred tax asset 112435 125
—




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements far the period ended March 31, 2025

(ANl amounts in T in takhs, unless srared otheewise)

11 Property, plant and equipment

Gross Block Computer Office Fumiture & Vehicle  Right of use Tol
Ui Equiy Fixtures asset
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7248 79.50 121.55 752 458.03 1,059.08
Aquired thraugh business - -
Addstions 47 1515 238 149 17916 2110
Disposils (89.45) (21.26) (33049) (2752 (103.75) [275.92)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 322.50 73.39 11145 2049 533.4 1,061.26
Additions 77 707 13901 350 27616 REUAE]
Disposals (8872) (11.53) (21.27) {20147 (386.15) (52R.31)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 272.55 132.93 229.83 23,50 423,25 1,082.06
Accumulated depreciation
Balunce us at March 31, 2023 3453 60,96 70.74 9.91 303,82 759.97
Deprection charge for the year 4633 1154 1740 308 T5.18 153,34
Adpstment on account of disposals [81.17) (1B.68) (2303 {10.22) (50.43) (18404
Bulance as at March 31, 2024 279.91 53.82 64.71 .77 328.07 7228
Deprecintion charge for the period 2838 2244 29003 1247 9316 185.19
Adjustment on account of dispagals (82.24) (9.76) (15.90) (R0 (318.03) (434.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 226.05 66,50 77.84 .64 10260 479.65
Net block
Balanee as at March 31, 2024 4250 19.57 4674 1772 20537 33198
Balance as at March 31, 2025 A6.50 66,43 15199 1686 3N 65 241
12 Intangible assets
Gross Block Software® Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 30.32 30,32
Aquired through busincss
combination
Addinons 0.76 0.6
Adjustments during the vear - <
Balance as at March 31, 2024 31.08 31.08
Additions imn inz
Dispogals - =
Balance as ar March 31, 2025 36.80 36,80
A Luted depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 25,62 25.62
Aquired through business
combination
Depreciation charge A0 il0
Disposuls - -
Balance as ar March 31, 2024 28.72 28.72
Deprecmnnn change 270 270
Disposgals 3 -
Balance as ar March 31, 2025 3142 3142
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 236 236
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5.5 5.38
* Operating system for computers.
12A Capital Works-in-Progress
Particulars CWIP Total
Balance as an March 31, 2023 - .
Addbtion 9.21 9.21
Disposals > E
Balance @8 ut March 31, 2024 9.21 9221
Addirion - .
Dugposals =.21) 9:21)
Bulance as at March 31, 2025 - -
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
MNotes o the financial statements for the period ensded March 31, 2025
(AL wmooni i § i lakhn, onleas tated odenaise)

Noee 13: Other non-financial assets

Particulars o Al
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mdvances recoverabre m canh v sn kind or G value 1o be reecived A1 T8
Hripabd ewpenses TEA61 40584
829.77 3730
MNore 14: Trade payable
Particulass As an As at
March 31, 2025 March 3, 2024
Trade Payables iy
(0 meotal esranding dues of MSA 12 4517 1ATR
() o] tstaenling dies of ereditoes other than M5 1Ly 1994 11328
2431 127,10
Other Payables
{1 wral ouoimoding dues of MM -
o) otal outstuditys dues OF croditons otler than MSME:
“Total 2431 127,14
Trade Payubles sgeing schedule as on §lst March, 2025
]Parﬁmlm Onuitstanding for from due dare of paymeng
Lens than 1 year 12 years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 .
] 4317
193,15 L A 167 34
236,31 L7 1467| 341

: schedule as on Stst March, 2024
Cruts
Less than | year

for following periods from duc date of payment
2

13.78|
1277 411 208 435
tited uies — BESME L N
() spited dues — Othiers
) Unbilied dues | -
Toeal 11454 4.1 1.0 4.3
£: These are o cases Wieen: no due dave of payment o specificd.
##: There 18 1 cases of franmactions with the compancs strock ofl unider sccaon 246 of Companies Ait, 2013 or seetion 360 of Crmpamses Sex, 19560
Note By Debt siecurities (at amortised cost)
Particulars As ar As ut
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Maneconvertible debentrey AT 195213
A,974.00 195213
el secunines i India 07400 195713
Dbt socurities outsice Irda = :
e I
Unanortised Processing Fees {EER0 {285
Acerued Inveoese IHRIZ 14598
Pasiculsr T‘fmn aof Repayent Asat As g
March AL, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Nin-convenible dehentures (socoved)
Zimil (March 31, 2024 2000), i1 0B, manesl, faed, fully madd ap, senior, secunmd, mdeemable, trmabiln pon.
converable dobengsten of faoe vahie of T 1,00,000 cacky, The date of alotment & Mach 04, 2024, Mcdeetnalily wr e onl )
e by way of hypothecatnn of first rnking, exchiivs wd continumg ehange o book debt ehich ihall be] Acgt (14, 3125 2006 195213
Jezterstaines] ar 105% af peincipal tichuding kvtecest scerued amioutt of the debestures oumrtnding ) '
L5 (March 30, H03: NI, @)10.55%, el fered, Rilly pald up, senipr, secuvcl, redermable, tocdde, non-
conyeribik debemtun of fae value of € 100,000 ety The date of dlorment i June 28, 203, Revicomuble 2t par o .
{Secueed by way of hypothecssion of first rankang, exchisive and coprinaing clvitge on boak debe-wlich dll el e 3, %26 451
riiamuunel at W05% of pracpal inchidng et sconsed wrant of the dehgnnems outsranding)
100 (March 39, 20045 Nifj, @15, rared, tetod, fully pawd up, wer, seowred, redeesnalle, boble, don
comviehlbile debsentune of fee vilue of T 100000 cach, The darte af allohont i A 30, 2024 Rasbocimalde a1 peir on| -
Secvred by sy of hyprathecanion, of fist ening, enchusive nd continuing charge on Lok debt which shall bel A 30, 2026 i
erunsiined ar 105% of principal ichading interest sccnucd smosns of the debonbnes cumsanding )
LEM (March 31, 2024 Nil), E‘_wm'f.. wutnd, Joed, Rdly paid up, temor, seurad, mdoemable, coable, non-
ermbile deby wF Eact vahe of € 1,00,000 each, Tha date of allateent v Soprember 20, 2624, |Rodocenabile o par wl _
(Sesmid iy way of hypothecaon of first mnkmg, exchisive and continuing charge on Book debr which siial A

memnesinedd ar 105% o priniipal inehicling miceest sccreed smoont of the debenmires outsmading)

bieSepembier 20, 2024
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED .
Notes to the financial statements for the perlod ended March 1, 2025
{AD sewsrits m 2 an lakh, unlews stased otherwise) ]

Nute 1: Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Particulars Asar Agat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Teom loons from bank (A amorbsid Cost) 9
Seeured @ 2,704, 50 323047
LUpsecunesd -
Teerm Joatne G firatseml sistimitins At nmoenped Cost) 2
Seevned 5 19,988.17 1606810
Seeuntization (PIT) 11,845.58 34220
Lousaty frvanes eudaedd s usecuesd)
Lease libilitx a2 21853
> 485,40
Boerowemgs w Indm 3 pES AL
Bormmiogs ontade Indn .
M 0
# Sevured by way of Hrpothetanio of bock debit o the eent of T8 of the vabue of the iiun outtandieyg snd Secured by say of Hypothecanim of Vibides.
Hecurnd by way of Hypothecutivn vl Book debt (o the extmt of 1004 1 133% of the walue of the losn cutanding.
SH7: There are (v insmances whiery th company has ot wsed tive bormwngs: from banks and francsl inainscns for e spoofic purpose for which it was raken ot the bulates e date.
P N pirrdy et v eatetriense kst e O eompany-nid baoils or dinincnl instnarions e wgpreessent sivh tae breoks of aoo e
Uinunerrtivid Proccssing Fees TR 187.37)
Aceeue Tnterest 18870 117,04
Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities
The chasges w the Cosmprang's babilnes asung feom financing sci afied a0 fillows:
Paricalin Debt securis Oher Borrorings “'“'“’-;";‘:“"“"" Tonl
March 31, 2023 B 16,3363 108,22 7959
Adoption of lnd AS 11§ - by i1 (g AT
Canh fows: .
- Hepaymens (H000) (1A B4 (LB {15,452.50)
« Prosoeds from averdestt fich - = -
+ Proceeda ochar than ovendrudy el 2000, 2464723 202
= Olthers 341 W60 29
Now eash:
- Conveesion of Opsonslly Convertibile, Redormable Pevference Sharms - -
+ Faneign eaclange .
« Amortitaton of upfront fees and othesi A3 (B200) E 124a1)
- Others %012 LA .10
Masch 31, 2024 ] 23,230.84 NEst 25,1151
Aduption of Ind A5 116 Ui i = F ErRn
Cash flows: .
- Repayiveniy [EYEE ] [ VRLET) (1574028,
Prodeeds froe cvenily fadity - -
« Trotecds othet than oveedeaft fallity 6,999.00 06,9595 35,05595
Cithess 1250% 703 19697
Noo camhe *
- Comweman of Optanaly Converible, Redvernahle Proferenes Sham
- Horeym wechange = -
- Amartiation of wpfront fre and athers 205 Ay .
- (ibiees (38
March 34, 2028 L0040 M 3L
Nate 174 Other financial Habilities
As ar As
Rpdioniin Manch 31,2025 | March 31,2024
larerest accrued by notdue on Lorg Teon Bumwangs e
Fuest boes defpule goaesntee fabahty® . s
Onher payable 1136 34
Espenses payabic T8 215K
Total HLH 3.2
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Motes to the financial sttements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al wmounts T i lakhs, unbess stated otherise)

Note 16A: Terms of principal repayment of Debit Securities & Other Borrowings as at March 31, 2025 -

Due withino 1 year Due between Lin 2 Due between 210 3 ‘Duc beyond 3 Years Total
Original mansrity oo e e No. of Amount Na, of Amount Na, of Amount Nao, of Amount
of Inan : installing installinen ingtallmen o installment
nis 1] s E
Below 9.00% 24 L TR0 e .69 . 1o 353 - - 18.22
M % P o § 2% 1115 834018 55 5718586 4 159.19 - - 14,427.33
anthly =
1201 % 0 15% 427 0,660 81 260 722469 103 274630 19,631.88
Above 130 - - . - - - . -
el 9.00%s - - - . - - - - -
Quantety % to 12% . - - - - - - -
1201% 1o 15% 4 364 2 181.74 . - - 545.38
9% 1o 12% ! 2,000 3 6,909 - - - - §,9499.00
Buller 12.00% to 150 = E : = 5 .
Above 15% - - . - . - - - -
Totl 561 20,380.74 34 20,131.98 17 3,109.10 - - 43,621.82
Terms of principal repavenent of Debit Sccurities & Other Borrawings as at March 31, 2024
Original ity | 1 fate Due within | year Due between 1 o 2 Due beeween 2 10 3 Due bevond 3 Years Totl
of loan No. of Amount WNo. of Amonat MNo. af Amount No. of Amount
ingtallme installmen ngtalimen | installment
nts = ts s
Below 2.00% 12 5.87 12 Gl 11 657 - - 18,64
Monthly 9% 1o 12% 2] 281342 50 248,12 11 H08.52 - - 6,070.00
12.01% o 15% 370 7,194.53 2iily 539721 95 2,490.30 i 142.00 15,224,04
Above 15% 24 476.65 25 528.54 - - - 1,005.19
Quirterly 101" 1o 15%% [ #6497 4 363,64 2 181.82 - - 992.42
Bullet 1201% o 15% - - 1 2,000,060 - - 1 0.20 2,000,20
Above 15% = - - # ~ -

Total 484 10,937.44 358 10,743.91 19 3,487.00 T 142.20 25,310.56




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Morew to the financial statements for the period ended March 11, 2025
(AT msmoenrs an i Jakh, anless sated otherwise)

Note 18 Provisions
e Mm:’-‘:t 2025 Mmlr;t mu
Dwision fos eompeanated dliencey 1.7H T2
Prowision for gransty 4829 2y
Pionvinac fior fiest loss defaill pusasites 512354 1,514.08
Tol HisD.61 L636.22

*Compny bas made provisis o scotuns of compensated absmeas lased on Bxpees Opimon and Actanal Val Basie Salary 1of enploy

Mote 1% Other non-financial Kahilities
f— Nk 225|330
Stannoey dues payable W05 10815
Total 106,45 HIE.L5
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes ta the financial sravements for the period ended March 31, 2028
(AU anvoumts b T i ki, vinless fased othensog

#  Equity share capital Awas As
. Mugch 31, 2128 March 31, 304

Authorived cquity share capital

FIAOON000 (31 Maxch 224 1580, KL Eguity sharen of 110 each. 1530000 RET i
15,500.00 15,8000

Tanucd and subscribed

137367502 (31 Musel 2024 15,1557 092 Founy shaves of €10 each 18509 1573500
15,755.79 15,756.79

Patd vp oruitg share capinal

18,75,57802 (31 Marck H106 157557003 Equiy shaves ol T10esch 1575579 1575510
15,755.79 15,755.79

1) Righis, pref o 1 ched 10 equity shares.

‘Thie company has ouly vie s o equity shares hunvng par S vabus of T 10 pier slare. Eath equity stareholder is cligisle foe oie vore pee chane bebd, Ay dhvivkene, if oposed by e Bourd of Dheccine,
w ubjece w che spproval of shareholders, Dividend declared anid paid windd be m lodan mpees. Dividends an: subier i comporate divadend . In the event ol hquidation of the Company, the Dikders of

ity shase will be entitled 1 sccetve remanning msens of the Company, afte disb of all preferential smounte The distbution will be 0 proporian (o e maiober of equin shares bkl by the
sharehoklens
§) Reconpiliution of equiry sharcs ouiianding st reponing year end date No. af shares L3 No. of sharen T
Equity slure cppital of 2 10 cach fully paid ap Murch 3, 2025 Minrch 31, 2024
Halance st the bepmanyg af the yeae 157557892 15.735,70 140,05, 14,5545 146140
A Lisueed g the: yrar . - 17044083 10430
Balance ar che end of the year 15,75,57,802 15,755.79 15, 1578579
i) Equity shares bield by holifing /promuter company as at balance sheet dae;
Murch 31, W35 Miurch 31, 2024
 changre
" change durng during the

Egguiry ahare copital of T 10 cach fully paid up Mo of shnses Wi halding the year No. of whares % holding yea
Sabine Crediteree Metwark Limird l!.?.i'&?ﬂ\"ﬁ A0 LK URTSATHIE  nine 00w

IBIEENER WK% .00 [ 802 10 (IS
) Shurebalders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company ua st balance sheed date:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Eguiry whave capital of 210 each fully paiid up No. of shares a liolaling No. af shares i holding
Savint Crediteare Nesworl Linnind 15,7357 p2 100K VRT557H02 UL

15,7! 108100 15 004
¥ The Campany has seither jsoed equivy shares i wdthout poy being received in casli or auy bowis shares not bas there been sny b i3 e b the

eurvent year and five yeass inumerlistely preceding the Iuhm shieer dute excopt pursuan to scheme of amulgee stion a8 wentioned above,
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the pe;'iud ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless srated otherwise)

21 Other equity

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained carnings (313.78) (910.41)
Statutoey resecves [ 561.80 41274
Amalgamation reserve 725.23 72523
Secunties Poemmm 2.295.70 2,205.70
Total Other Equity 3,268.95 252326

@ Statutory resecves

The reserve is ceeated as per the provision of Section 453(1C) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This i a restricted reserve

Indin,

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lac)
Net assets received 4,526.71
Equity shace capital (a5 pec approved scheme) 380149
Amalgamation Reseeve 125,23

and no appropration can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial starements for the period ended Macch 31, 2025

(Al amounts i ® m lakhs, unless smted othersise)

Note 22: 1 ! i d at iscd cost)
Pariculars For the period ended For the yesr ended
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2014
Iviteecit wcoe vn poetfolio ks 909008 6,223 6
Toterest income on deposits 28551 J2342
w 6,547.50

Nate 23: Fees and commission income

3 For the period ended For the year ended
Particulass
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Incnme from BC operitons and asher suppon services L4575 HBEA
Dincumentation charges 415.77 25524
Logmn Fee Income 25542 165.03
) 5,289 31

Nate 24: Net gain on fair valuc changey

. For the penod ended Far the vear endesd
Particulars 2
k March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net gain/ (logs) on financial instruments
at fair value thraugh probit or loss

Mustutl FPunds 9617 423
Total Nes gain/(loss) on fair value changes 96,17 54.23
Far Value Changes: -
Realued 9617 4.2}
Tatal Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 9617 54,23

Mot 25: Dther Income

— For the period ended Fag the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Miseellaneous incune 163.03 20601
Inteeust ineome on secusry deposs 1.64 {466
Ner gain on desecognimon of propaety, plant snd equipment 459 1467
Fotechsmre charges roceaved 2115 1813
190,91 23947
MNote 26: Finance cost {on fi ial Babiliries at ised cost)
Paiticulars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2005 Murch 31,2024
Intecent on borrowings
Ittt ob borrowimgs other than debt secarics 252080 247,00
Intierest on debt seeuriiss 736,58 35.61
Tnterest o borrowings from hank AT 14 3378
Othier mnerest expenses : 30658 13837
Interes edpense on lease isbility 46H 2488
407,32 2,643,63
Note 27: Tm pai on fi bl i (om financial aseety d ut aenortised cost)
For the period coded For the vear ended
Particulars y
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Allowanee for expected eredit hoss 66510 Y215
Portfolio loany wrteen off 66356 206,08
1328 66
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Notes 10 the fnancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Al gmounts in 2 in laih, unless stared otherwse)

Nate 28: Employee benefit cxpenses

Particalars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Musch 31, 2024
Salanien, wages and bonus 434524 5 20006
Contmbution to provident and other lunds 30812 43219
Stafl welfarg expensts 6366 309
477,02 5,755
Note 22: Depreciation and amortization expense
For the perod ended For the vear caded
Particulars )
Masch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plint and equipment w23 16
Ampetisanon on mmnpble ascts 27 340
Amutisation on nght of use asscty w16 TR
18789 156.44
MNote 30: Oaher expenses
i For the perod ended For the year ended
articula .
Sctikion March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Buuk chargen nm 5160
Rent 127.28 197.46
Tenvelling and conveyance 31934 26940
Repair and mainmininee (%25 1282
Pranting and stationery 194 THEI
Commumication cost 5353 T4
Trsuney chiunses a9 2018
Software & TT suppon expenses 108007 niLe
Rates and 1xxes 1124 34.55
Fleciriciey charges 14,74 2552
Auditor's remumeration® 2970 2N
Bugmness promaticn =4 .70
Commssion paid = 4174 6253
Taany Processing Charges a2 2444
logal und professional change 15853 61,32
Divector stitingg fees 743 .50
Balance write ofF 3062 6562
Office expenses 16080 15729
Waeite off agasnist finst loss defiult guaraniee 77861 T81.54
First loss default guaranioe expensen -1,001.35 16663
Postuge & counier b5 Ferd o
Mincellancous cxpenscs U 1378
1,362.52 1.8125_
Note*: Auditors remuncianon meliles paymonts a8 follows:
) Statutory audie e
(b) Toax audic 350
&) Ceenhoanon foc and other services 1630
Total 19.70
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Notes to the financial starements for the period ended Macch 31, 2025

(Al amounts i ® m lakhs, unless smted othersise)

Note 22: 1 ! i d at iscd cost)
Pariculars For the period ended For the yesr ended
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2014
Iviteecit wcoe vn poetfolio ks 909008 6,223 6
Toterest income on deposits 28551 J2342
w 6,547.50

Nate 23: Fees and commission income

3 For the period ended For the year ended
Particulass
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Incnme from BC operitons and asher suppon services L4575 HBEA
Dincumentation charges 415.77 25524
Logmn Fee Income 25542 165.03
) 5,289 31

Nate 24: Net gain on fair valuc changey

. For the penod ended Far the vear endesd
Particulars 2
k March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net gain/ (logs) on financial instruments
at fair value thraugh probit or loss

Mustutl FPunds 9617 423
Total Nes gain/(loss) on fair value changes 96,17 54.23
Far Value Changes: -
Realued 9617 4.2}
Tatal Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 9617 54,23

Mot 25: Dther Income

— For the period ended Fag the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Miseellaneous incune 163.03 20601
Inteeust ineome on secusry deposs 1.64 {466
Ner gain on desecognimon of propaety, plant snd equipment 459 1467
Fotechsmre charges roceaved 2115 1813
190,91 23947
MNote 26: Finance cost {on fi ial Babiliries at ised cost)
Paiticulars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2005 Murch 31,2024
Intecent on borrowings
Ittt ob borrowimgs other than debt secarics 252080 247,00
Intierest on debt seeuriiss 736,58 35.61
Tnterest o borrowings from hank AT 14 3378
Othier mnerest expenses : 30658 13837
Interes edpense on lease isbility 46H 2488
407,32 2,643,63
Note 27: Tm pai on fi bl i (om financial aseety d ut aenortised cost)
For the period coded For the vear ended
Particulars y
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Allowanee for expected eredit hoss 66510 Y215
Portfolio loany wrteen off 66356 206,08
1328 66
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Notes 10 the fnancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Al gmounts in 2 in laih, unless stared otherwse)

Nate 28: Employee benefit cxpenses

Particalars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Musch 31, 2024
Salanien, wages and bonus 434524 5 20006
Contmbution to provident and other lunds 30812 43219
Stafl welfarg expensts 6366 309
477,02 5,755
Note 22: Depreciation and amortization expense
For the perod ended For the vear caded
Particulars )
Masch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plint and equipment w23 16
Ampetisanon on mmnpble ascts 27 340
Amutisation on nght of use asscty w16 TR
18789 156.44
MNote 30: Oaher expenses
i For the perod ended For the year ended
articula .
Sctikion March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Buuk chargen nm 5160
Rent 127.28 197.46
Tenvelling and conveyance 31934 26940
Repair and mainmininee (%25 1282
Pranting and stationery 194 THEI
Commumication cost 5353 T4
Trsuney chiunses a9 2018
Software & TT suppon expenses 108007 niLe
Rates and 1xxes 1124 34.55
Fleciriciey charges 14,74 2552
Auditor's remumeration® 2970 2N
Bugmness promaticn =4 .70
Commssion paid = 4174 6253
Taany Processing Charges a2 2444
logal und professional change 15853 61,32
Divector stitingg fees 743 .50
Balance write ofF 3062 6562
Office expenses 16080 15729
Waeite off agasnist finst loss defiult guaraniee 77861 T81.54
First loss default guaranioe expensen -1,001.35 16663
Postuge & counier b5 Ferd o
Mincellancous cxpenscs U 1378
1,362.52 1.8125_
Note*: Auditors remuncianon meliles paymonts a8 follows:
) Statutory audie e
(b) Toax audic 350
&) Ceenhoanon foc and other services 1630
Total 19.70
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the Anancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(AN nemouens an T in akh, unliess staved othersTec)

Mote 31: Earning per Share
Net pesfit/ [Larss) o the year
Weighted avirge number of equity shares foe EPS
Par wilve pet share §n RS}
Busiz Hamings per share (in RS

Nommal vahue of equity share (%)
Weighted-average number of equity shares used to compute diluted cormimgs pee share
Diluted Earmings pee share {in R

Notwe 3% Tax Expense
Curent tux (meluding mxes eadivr yeand
Minimum alternate -ty credit entitfement
Defermod tax expense/ {credit)

The major components of income e expense and the mm‘kulmn of expense based on the domeste effectve oo e OF ut 2

repugtod X cpense i profit of loss arc as follows:
Accounting profit before income tax

At gotsiry’s stitutory income s ote of 27.82%
(March 31, 2024: 27.62%)

Vax effect of adj w0 il d i tix 0

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 21, 2625 Macch 31, 2024
74528 S
15,75,57.802 14,5435 466
1 10
047 M
10,00 10.00
15,75,57.892 14,94,55,406
047 034
15927 154,94
3436 (150.410)
119.37 18421
313.02 188.75

1) Tax mpm.mt'npcum.u wihuch 1 non duhac!ﬂ:]:
{u} Tz umgmct on items exempt under wieome By
(i) Lmpact of diffevence i o me on cectain tems
(i%) Prctimanary expennes allowed

(v} Earhier year taxes

vt Others

Note 33: Leases

¥ d income tax

A2% and the

1,058.30 703,52
204,42 19572

- 453
18,401 (11.50)
313.02 188.75

The Company has taken vaeious office premises under kease armmngements. Geneally, the fease oo varies froim 11 mionthe to 6 months and i
renewable under eutlly agreed terms between lessee wnd Yessor ad there s no cxclusive night to the company, The company hai consicesed leases

terving anifial lesse term of upto. 12 months as ghoet term leases as per paen 6 of Ind AS 116 and ther

v boen

g a3 Rent undee

none 30, For afl other lexseh baving lease teem of mose than 12 months a dghe af use asset 1 recogmsed with 2 coeresponding lease halnlity. Vhe nght
of wse puser 45 thselosed wnder Propety, Plant and Equipenient anil lease Babihty = disclosed under Bocrowngn, Further diclogures as on Maeh 31,

2005 are ua follows:

1 “he table below desceibes the nanure of the Compuny’s leamng activities by type of right-oluse asser eecognised on bitance sheet:
Right of use asset Office Premines
N For the year ended  For the vear ended
P
ieulass March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Toml number of jeases T 117
|Numbcr of leases considered an short wem Jeases 34| 81
Nos. of nght-of use asety leased 34 36|
Rauge of reenaining tean Lipto 54 months| Lt 37 montha|
Aveoye remaniing lease oo A1 mesths 22 monihs|
N, of keages wath extensinn opnions U 1]
[Na. of leases with purchase options U [
No, of leanes with vamable payments lnked o an isdex (1] 1
No. of leases with fermunation opoons 1| 17
2 Additional information on the nght-of-une assers by cliss of asscrs is as follows:
Particulars Righ of use asset
Office Premises
| Cagryang amount as o March 31, 2024 2015.37
| Addipon 27640
Depreciation 9310
Uicletion G172
Carpying smount s on Micch 31, 2025 320.66
3 Bifureatom of Lease abilities i current and ten current 25 follows
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Curecar 75.59 5750
MNon-cuerent 275.53 16103
35112 218,53




L]

i

At 31 Mareh 2025 dha Company do not have any committed leases which had not yer commenced.

The vndiseounted mahuity analyses of lease habilives at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Particulars Lease pavments| Finsnce charges)  Net present values
Within | year 11821 4262 75.59
1-2 vears . 116.67 31.82 B4.85
2-3 veans 11542 19,61 Ml
4 veans [y 5] T4 T8
4-5 yoars ¢ 15441 0y . 1489
Total 45333 10221 35112

Thie wdiscounted maturity analysis of fease Habibmes ar 31 March 2024 15 ax follows:

Particulars Leuse payments Finance charges|  Met preaent valwes
Withun 1 year B168 2414 57.50
1-2 veurs £76 172 ST
2.3 yenss 56,44 1125 4518
-4 years 3544 5a2 .82
4-5 years 1486 0,54 14,32
[ Total 27675 8.2 218,53

"The Company hus elested not to reeognise o leane Tiability Foe shiort term leases (Jeasee af sxpected term of 12 months o less) o foor feases of low valus
asity, 'ayments made under such leases are expensed on i steaight-line basie Tn siddition, certun variable lease payments ase not permined m be
vecognised 1y lease linbidities and are f g 1 The Company does not face 2 signi ficant Tgudity ek with regasd to ts leese labnlioes ag the
current assets are suffcient bo mott the ahlngamm el 1o Jease habdities as and when they full due.

"Thie exy relating to pay wist inehaded in the mcwarement of the ks bability w o follows:
Operating loases
The Company bas talien en Yease certam sssets under eperating dease areangemenis. The gonteactusl future min lenies payment ablgation m

respet of these beases are o5 undur

Office premises
Particulars ) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Shavrt, ferm Jenses 17228 117,46
Lgases of Jow vahue assers - 5
Varmable lease payments ! - ’ .
Total z 127.28 19746
[Minimum leuse sbligations: ‘
within one year 7559 57.50
Lamer than one year but not Later thao five yeans 275.53 16103
- Lawer than five yote - -

The Company bad taml eash outfiows for leases of Ra, 24401 lakh wn Maech 31, 2025 (R 29857 lakh m Masch 31, 2024)

The folliwang are the amounts eccopnised in profit or liss:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Dy st expense of nght-nl-use dsscts 16 7518
Interest expense on lease habilitics 46,86 2K.88
Eixpenise relating fo short-lerm leases finchuled in other cxpenses) 127.28 197 46
Fgpenase relating o leases of low - value sssety fncluded in othes expenses) - -
Variabhi leuse p {inchuded i othir exper ' 2
Toml §in profit or loss 267.30 30152
The Company has lease foroffics buldings wed o Loeases of thiese Wiildings genirally Tave Tedee témms Hierecen 11 months

and 5 years yeam. The Company’s obligations under it leased are socured by the Jessor's title to the lessed assets. Generally, the Company is sestacted
frenn assiggiring and subleasmg the lensed agsets. Theee are severnl lesse contraces that nchicle extensson and teemmation optiond, which ae Rarthee
diseuised below,

The Cemypany has several leave commety thiar include extengion and (eemination optsons, Thess optinas ane negotiated by management uy provide
frexibibioy im manapng the lesscd-asset porfolio and align with the Compaoy's busiocss needs, Mansgement ceercises significat judpement in
determuing whethee these cxtenvion and teeminasion opbons ane by cortam iy e exercised,

The Commpany doks nbi have any lease contrcts thit containg vanable payments.

Sex out below are the undiscounted potential futune ronmal paymients relating 1o periods fllowing, the exercise date of cutensivn and terminaton
options that are not incladed in the lewe wom:

[Particulars - Within five years | More than five years Tatal
(phons d nut b be ised (Count) C

Terminanon options expected 0 be exercised (Coung - - -

Exnengion optiong expected unr 10 be exercied (Amount in Lakhs)

i | Ot exp ] 1o be | (A 11y Lukhs) -
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|Particulars Within five years | More than five vears Total
| Extension optons expected not o be exercised (Count) - =
T it options expected w be exercised (Count)

Extension options éspected #ot to be exercised (Amotnt i Takhs)

|Tesminution optivns expected by be exereined (Amount in Lakhs)

Note 34: Contingent Liabilities not provided for
Mo contimgent liabilities 2 on March 31, 2025 (previons year Nil), Estimated smount of contrcts remaining to be exeuted on capital sceomnt 1 Mil
(previus year Mil). Othes commitments is Nil as on March 31, 2025 {previcus year Nil).

M1 Esumares
) Impaiement of fnancil assets baned on cxpected coodst loss model.

342 Classification and measurement of Anancial assets ond Yabilides
The elassification and sacasurement of financial axsers will be made considering whether the conditions s per nd AS 109 ane met bad on fuces and
cercurmstanees exising at the tite of wansnon, '
Finiancial assets ts medsuoed using effectve micrest method by assessing its contmetual cash flow chamcrenstes only oo the basis of fcts and
cicomstances existing at the date of tranution and if it 15 impracticable 1o assess clements of modified tme value of money Le. the we of elfcctve
miteeese method, Gar value of financial asser ar the date of trananon shall be the new carrying amount of that asset The mfersurcment exemption

applics fiur inancal labilites 2 well
Apiplying 1 nequirément is improcticable when the entity cannot apply it afier making every reascomable offort 10 do wo. 113 impracticable to apply the
chanpes etvospectvely of

#) The effcews of the retospective apphication or pective are a0t d bk .

b) The retrospective applicition or rest EGUTES 45 abowt what manag ' antenst wonkd e been n that peeod;
The retrospective apphication. or metroipective wstatement rogurres. sigmificant. ests ol ks wnd of & imposssble o day b objectively
mfe won abouit thiise tos that exited ot that tama.

MNote 35: Asset Under Management
Ve Cismpany i dlso i the activity of business corespondant for various banks and NBFCa The Company. peivides fiest and secind loa defauls

gunrantces in the form of fixed deposis/guarntees for Assets Unider Manag s per | corresp iy signed with visoin
bunks and NBFC:
The ina ise Assers Lndec Managy in boales of company for busi pondence activity as on March 31, 2025 an: as follows:
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Nume of Partner FDR balunice for FDR batance for
AUM FLDG AUM FLDG
Yex Bank Lud. . - . 5208%
RBLL Bk Lud, 1202 B86 12m LAl
Relianee Commercial Finance Tl 756,61 193.43 75661 1m0
Federal Bank . 14539 A90TTT 24561
TDRC First Bank Tad. 2,367 44 1,39.32 154 14 122
ana bmall Finance Bank 144, - - RI80.75 113241
CSH Bank Lud.* - - 14521006 BAL2
3,136.41 1,657.01 17,463.43 3462.82
FDR halance meludes peerued miceest.
Note 36: Details of dues to miceo and small enterpriscs as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
A al As at
Particulan .
e Narch 513028 | March 31,2024
(The primcigal amncunt and dhe intencst due tieveon remainings utgraid 10wy supplier 25 1t the oo of each
SIS YOS - 847 1178

Tho urmount of incerest paid by vie buyee in terms of seetion 16 of the MSMED Aet, 206 sl wath the
[atmounts of the payment made i the sppher beond the appossted diy during each seeounting year

[The arunt of meerest due snd pagable for the perd of deby i making payment fwluch have been paid bat
beyoned the appomited day dusing the year) but withour addityg the imerest spetified undee the MSMED Act,
2004,

The aemunt of wieeest sccued sl ooty enpaid 01 the ond of pach sceounting yea

(T wrusne of Bather wibcres ey due and pryabile even m succoeding yean, uinl such dute when the
wmtorest ey as above are actially paid 10 the small enteeprise for the pupose of dindlowanct: sa 1 deductible
expendinre wndes eenon 23 of the MSMETD Act, 2006
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Notes to the finuncial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(ATl amawnts w2 i lakhs, unless stated otheswise)

Note 37: Related party disclosures
1in pccondance with the reguirements of Tndian Accounning Sundaed — 24 the names of the elated panies where control/alility 1o cxereme siglieant

mfluence existy, long with the aggregare amount of transactions wd year end balances with them o denaficd snd ceenfied by the management
ven below:

a. List of rehited parties and disclosures:
Diescription of relationship
Holuinjg conmpany

Name of related parties
Satin Creduenre Netaodk Lamited

Enterprived over which key management personsel and relatives of such perimnel excrcise
significant inflience with whiun ieis ave been uadeetal

Satn Neo Dimensions Par. Ll
Fellow mibgichary compames Satn Heusing Finance Lamited
Satm Technologes Tamied

Key penal p d o ther
Name of key managerial personnel Designati Relatives

e H P Smgh Dhicetor M. Sarvinder Singh
Mes. Anurcct H V' Singh |

Mr. Varun Shankardass
P-ir. Siamit Mukheree ([l Fay 31, J023) Ditvetor & (10 -
r. Dy Jha Qw.eT. Tuooary T7 2035 (M)
. Tibuvie: anna (Bl March 5, 3025 ) T
¥ 1 Hansa Thil Fmancul | Mhcer |-
Me. Puneer Jolly {all December 19, 202%) Company Secrotone
Ms. Sanpam jawwal (woef January 17, 2025 Conspany Secootany

e Crurvindes Sangh (bl Seprember 11, 2024) Company Seceetary

Nume of Directnrs Designai

M. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Indcpendent Dirvetor
s [y AbTuwalin Indupetident Dirocios
il Amil Bumar Kale Tl pendent Dhirectire

=

. Detaily of transactions with reluted partics carried out In the ordinary course of business:

Name of reluted party MNarure of transaction Fnr;::ﬂ;e:;:dls;:rd Fnruﬁjmg:fd
Me, H ¥ Singh Personal Cumesniee sven 51500 703750
Facilimtien charges Income 1200 12.00
Technology shanng services expense T6.50 WK
Payment of rens for office space shanng, 5155 5131
Interoit Puid ' 26669
Satn Creditcans Network |armeed Tnter eorporue lomn taken = ERL
Loan Repaid - 650,000
Share based payments 137 -
Ingime From busimens corespondentis
operanons and support services . 148538
B Nk Diserie ot N Tntereal incoime o Inan‘ - 208
Reg reteived apainst laan = 3033
Nl Stamit Mukberjee @l May 31, 2025 ]Ilcmtmemnml - 17.600
Me. Ihirsy Tha (wef lanuary |7, 2025) |Remuneranon 1441
Kl Whuvnesh Khanna (6l [anuary 16, 2025 [Remuneration 153.57 : 29
Me.Arjun Bansal Remuineration 45,501 2700
Ale Pumcet Jedly (61l December 19, 202 R - 1274
Me. Sangam Jaiswal fwe £ |anaey 17, 2025) Remunemtion 4.36
Nl Ciuenadue Singh ol Sep 112024 R 251 Y28
e, Warun Shanbkaedass (wief December 11, 2024) | Remuneranion 1226 F .
Mr Anil Kumar Kalia Sinng [Fec SA L 1.4}
Me. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Satting Fec pEll 2.20
Mt fyon Abluwala Siting Fec L) (801

e 0 g bal with related parties in ordinary course of business;
|Name of related party | Mamure of transaction | Asat March 31,2025 | As ar March 31, 2024 |
Satin Credieare Nerwrk Lavited [Share based payments- Pavable | 137] -
M.

LM T P Singh, direaion of the compiiy has given personil guarantee for ferm loan taken fom Bank/E1 Outsandig o of March 31, 202518

T 10,486,758 Lakh (Previows Year K418.24 Lakhl.

2 During the year, expenliture of Ra, 1.57 Lakh { Pavious Year Nil) has been changed o profit & loss account m relation m share based payment m
hohding campany on sccount of ESOP granted m KMP under FSOP scheme formulared by the huolding company

d.| Key manag p 1 ion includes the following exp For the year ended For the year ended
March 34, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
[Showt-tedm employes henefies 24740 9341
623 (557
.8) (7.3
263.64 8192
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial scatements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Al amrounts in T in lakhs, unless stted otherwist)

Naote 38: Employee Benefits

The Company has adopred Indian Accounnng Standard (Ind AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit a3 under

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company has made T 308,12 lakhs (March 31, 2024 T 432.19 Iakhs) conmbution in respeet of providenr fund and other funds.

Defined benefit plans
A Grawity

"The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Eviry employee is eatided o pramity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gramiry Act,
1972, The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actwanal valuason. The schieme 15 funded by the Company and is managed by
Lafe Insurance Corporation of Tndia (*LIC") and ICICT Prudensal Life Insurance Co. Lid. jointly.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salury increnses

Actual salary ncreases will nerease the Plan's lalili.
Inerease w salary increase rate assumpdon o futuy
valuations will also inercase the lability,

Investment nsk

If Plan s funded thien assets labilies mismarch & acrual,
investment return on assets Jower than the discount e

d at the last valuanon dare can impuact the labilin

Diseaunt otie

Reduetion m discount mie in subsequent valuations can
mcrease the plan's Jubiliey.,

M pmliry'& l]i:inl:ilily

Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or highee than
assumied i the yaluation can impact the labilites,

Withdrawals

|withdrawals and change of withdeawal rates at subsequent|

Actual withdrawals proving higher or Jower than assumed

valuanions can tmpact Plan’s lability.

(i) Amount recognised m the balance sheet is as under;

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 |
Present value of ubligation 9466 83.06
Fair value of plan adsets 46,37 60.74
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision (48.29) (22.32))
() A gnised in the of profit and loss is as under:
Paruculars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current service cost 34.73 2749
Nt intetest cost /(income) 1.59 442
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation - -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 36.32 N
Acmaial (gain)/loss recopnised durnge the year 056 4.49
A t gnised in the of profit wnd loss and other
comprehensive income 36.88
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Tin lakhs, unless seated otherwise)

(itf) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balunce sheet is as pndern:

Particulars Asat March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year B3.06 118.00
Current service cost 3473 27.49
Interest cost N &72
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Benefits pasd (31.76) (70.54)
Actuanial loss/ (guin) on obligition
Actuanal (gain)/loss on arsing from change in demaographic assumption - 381
Actaanial (gan)/loss on ansing from change in financial assamption 10,60 273
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arsing from esperience adjustment {7.88) (7.15)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 94.66 83.06
(iv) Major categories of plun assets (s percentage of total plan assets):
Particul As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Funds managed by insuecr 100%: 1000
Total 100% 100%
(vi Movement in the plan assets recognised in the bals sheet is as nnder:
Particulirs As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 64.83 58.14
Achual teturn on plan assests 3.52 269
Employer's conmibution 9.99 59.00
Benefirs paid (31.98) (59.09)
Actuasial loss/{gan) on plan asseis - -
Fair value of plan asseis at the end of the year 46.37 60.74
(vi)  Actuarial assumpri -
Parti As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Discounting rate 6.94% T42%
Tutare salary increase 6.00% 4.00%
Reticement age (years) 60.00 60,00
Withdrawal rare
Up o 30 years A0).00% 40.00%,
Iriam 31 toy 44 years 20.00% 20L00%e
Above 44 years 10.00%, 10.00%.
Wetghted average duratun 392 3,63

Murtlity rates inclustve of provision for disabiliey -100% of TALM (2012-14)

Giratuity 19 payable to the employees on death or resipnation or on retirement at the armmment of superiwnuation age. To provide for these
eventualities, the Actuary has used Tndian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate able.
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{vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity lability

Particulars As ar March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Tmpact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obliganon ar the end of the year 94.66 83.06
- Impact due to inchcase of 0,50 %% (2.89) (215)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 305 226
Tmpact of the change i salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 94.66 83.06
- Impacr due o increase of 050 % 3.07 232
- Iimpaet due to decrease of 0.50 % (2.93) 2.22

Senitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not matedal 1nd hence impact of change due to these 15 not caleulated.
Sensitivities as 1o rate of increase of peasions in payment, tare of merease of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not

applicible.

(viil) |Muaurity profile of defined benefit obligarion As at March 31, 2025 As ut Miarch 31, 2024
001 year 6.70 10.09
| 13 2 year 8.57 8,96
2t 3 year 8.66 833
3 1o 4 year 9.07 7.81
4to 5 year 779 G.60
5t 6 year 852 5.23
6 vear onwards 4535 36.04

B Compensated ahsences (non-funded)
M A guoised in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Pregent value of obligation 99,78 99.82
Fair value of plan assets = -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 99.78 99.82
(i) A recognised in the ent of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars As ar March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Toral service cost 34.77 56.21
Mt interest cost on defined benefic abligation 8! 889
Net actuaripl (gain)/loss recogniscd during the vear (3.41) (2.93)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 58.47 6217

{This gpae. bas been lft blank imtentionally)

Q -
5 GURUGRAM __?_:
Z
N
*
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Nate 39; Finuncial instruments
A Financial assees and labilities

The carrving of financial o by catepnry s ds follows
Particulary Asat As i
Notes to schedule) ypureh 31, 2028 | March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash and Canh equivalents 4 6,005 B4 548580
Bank bafinces ather than cash and cash equivalents 5 260299 3 05004
Reeervables 3 1772 35704
Losans E 50819095 20922
Security deposits i 2815 2453
Crther financial wssets B 115057 ATLEY
Totl 60, 72402 AZEILTG
Financial linhilities measured ut amortised cost
Parabiles 14 24511 127.0%
Delit secutitics 15 BO74.00 105213
Boreowings {other than debe sceuritien) 16 3453434 23.2490.80
Oeher financial labilitics 17 30014 24312
| Testal 44,052.68 25,563.17

B Fairvalues hierarchy
The fair value of financial instnaments as refeered 1o nate (A) above has been dassified into thive citegones depending on the mputs used in the valuation
techsicue, The hierarchy gives the highest prioeity to quotid prices in active markets for identical assets ot libities [Leved 1 i | i et prioniy fo
unobweevabli inputs ||evel 3 measurements|,

Thwe categories used are as follows:

Level 1t Quated prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level & Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie. desived from prices) observable market inputs, ather than Level |inputis and
Level 3 Inputs which are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable inputs).

LCompany does not have any assers miasured at faie value a2 year end

B.1 Fairvalue of d ar rised cost
Franr vabue of 4 | ue il cot for which fair value s duclosed i as fallows, these fir values are caleulated wsmy Leved 3 inputs:
Particulrs A ut March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Carrying vilue Fair value Carrying tulue Fair vilue

Financial asscts

Cash and Cash equivalents 6,015, 84 600884 5 ABRH 546586
Bank brlances other than cash and cash equvalents 280299 269299 3,959.0 1,959.60
Recervables 1 1772 BAPAT 33764
Loans S0,819.95 53,070,355 29n IETALGS
Secanty depomts 15 ®is 245 2453
Other financul assets 1,159.37 _ 115937 7162 8718
Tatal 60,724.02 62,974.42 42,871.76 44,461.19
Firanetil labilities

Payibliss 24511 2511 12700 12706
helst scarritien * $974.09 BOT400 1,0521% o 185213
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 34,534.34 34,5344 23,240 6 23, 24086
10:{1-4 Finnarcial lialli 3014 301,14 24312 245,12
Total 44,052.68 44,052.08. 25,563.17 25,563.17

The management assessod that fair values off cash and cash equivalents, othet bink balanees, e wechabies, other financial assets, trade payables and other
fivaneil Habilities approsimate (bl wespective camying amounts figely dus 1o the alior: eem maturtics of these instouments. The fir value of the fistuncial
agsets ol lubilities is included st the amount at which the mstnument could be exch 1 by clirvent i betwien willing partics; other than in o forced
o Hguedation sale. The following methods and sssumptions wene ased 1o estimite the e valuess

(i) Long-teen Ased-rate soecivables are evitluated by the Company baved on such as interest mtes, indidual ervdmmontinness of the ol other

imarket sk Factom

(i) The fair values af the Compatyy’s fived foterest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted eash fows (DCFT) miethod, iing discount
aite that seflects the fasuer's borrowing fate a4 at the end of the repaming period. The own non-peefirmance sl s 20 March 31, 2005 was assessed to be
{nslgmificant,

) The fuar values of the Company fived intecest beanng Illl!l itaes, | ingy and subordinalved Iuh]anu are determimed Iq applying diseounted cash flows
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Note 4 Financial nnk management

i

a)

Risk Management

The Company's actmes expose ot 1o market nsk, hiqudite ngk and crodie sk The Company's board of directors has evenll cesponsibiin for the cstablishment
amd oversight of the Company nvk munagement framework. The Company's nsk ane mansged by 8 treaury deproomen) undeer policies approved Ly the board of
direetors. The boued of diectors pmvides watten principles. for overall oxk management. This note explaing the sources of ask which the entity s exposed to
and how the entity managzs the risk and the relateed impmet in the fnancial sttemies.

Risk: Expesure arising from M [Mas
Credit nak Cah and cuh cguvalents, loans] Apong snalyme. [Bank deponits,
fi il wscts | at | diveonfication o]
st assot  base, coochy
limats e cofbaveral,
Lacpuachiny risk Beseromings, el secunties | Rolling  cash v Avadabailiry of
frubontingted  Habdlities, and  other| forecants committed  eredis
finarictal lubiliies hrves anel borrowing|
facilities:
Market risk - interest e Boreowings,  debe scouities  andSensitivity analysiv, [Megotntion o]
|subordmated liabslities a variable rates. terms  that  reflecy
the market ficlon.
Mlarket rink - scounty poce: Irvestmscrsts o equity. et mistual Sesrtvity wnalyen | Dweoaficaton of
[ K dhegrowien andd | o, warl focun
fapees T
 vesdinents

The Company's sk management o ciened out uder thic policies approved by the board of disecton. The board of directors provides vritton principles for
aversll nsk management, a5 well an policies covenng specific ieas; such as forcigh exchanie sk, inferest mte dsk, coodit rle and investment of excess lgddby,

Credin risk

Credit rlsk 5 the risk thar o counteeparty fails ty dischange its obliganon o the Company. The Company’s cxposure to credit sk ® influenved maisly by cash and
cash oyuivalonts, loan issests, aind Gther financa) assets mcasured at amaortisesd enst, The Company continuously moniors defaulis of enstomers aned ather
coumterfrartion and incorporates this mlonnanon it s creht nak controls

Credit nik mansgement

The Company sssenses and muniges credit risk based on witemmnl enedin mating system. Inteenal ceedic rating s performed for each class of financial insmanent
with different chamcterstics. The Company assigns the fallowing ceedin eatings 1 each clasy of financial assers based on the assumptons, mputs snd facton
specific to the dass of financial ases.

) Low credit oak-on financinl reporing dase

) Moderste escde nsk

(i) Figh credie rnk

The Company provides for expected credit loss bised on the followmg

Asset Company Bauis of caregorisation Provision for cxpected credit loss

Tow crodit nisk ) Cash and cash oquivalents, other bank | 12 month expeenad ervel Joss
batances, investments, loans and other
financial assets

Meiderate eredit nsk Lavidres, trade veceivildes and other Lafie firhe eapecbed coodit loss or 12
financial assets manth expected coodit loss

Ligh eredit misk Loans and other financial pssets Life firne expected enedit Toes fully

providd foe

Bascd on business envitonment in which the Company operates, 3 Jefauli on a financial asset i consalered when the counter party fals-to make payments
within the ajgreed ime period as por contee. Lo mtes neflecting defaults an: based on aciual eredit loss esperence and considering difforences between cusrent
and historieal coonoimic conditnmng,

Asscts are whitten off when there i no reasonable expectation of menvery, such an 3 borrawer declaring lankmprey or a litigation desded against the Company,
The Company continues to engyg with pertics whose bilances an writtn off and atrempis to enforee repayment. Recoverss made an icengmsal in statiment.
of peofic and loss.

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit nisk®

|Particutars As ot As at

Moarch 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
(i Law eredit rigk on fnancial reporting date

Bank Bulanee w curent accommiy & n Fixed Depomis 565560 A H85.08
Bank balances other than alyive 209299 3,959.69
Scourity deposits .15 2453
Other financial assets 1,159.37 #7162
Rucavables 1772 33704
Lawneas 4781499 30,769.54
(i) Moderate eredit risk 161567 187
(m} High eredit risk 472 137065

" Thiw: séprosent gross caryings veilues of Bnuncal assets, wathout deduiction for expeciod eredit losses
-
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Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposi

Credit rigk related b cash and ch epivalents and bank depesits s managed by only sccepring highly raresd banks snd diversifying bank dposits snd sccounts
diffesunt banks across the country. Ratngs are manitored perndically.

Receivables
Trade seeer d . amivenzed cost and credie sk related o thiese are d ly the blity! o such i I

igea. oy i ¥

Other financial assets

Otlser nancinl asiets measured ot amartiged eost includes loans and advanees 1o emplovess, socunity deposits and dthen. Credit sk eclated 1o thewe ather
finiicial assots w mandged by monitosng the erability of such 13 conti i

Laans

Crodie nsk refared 1o ¢ s are mitigared by wenng collaeral’s Mbank g Memer of credn, from bogower's. The Company closely moniors the
credit=wonthiness of the bormwer's through mtemal systems and peoject appraisal process to assess the crodit nsk and define credit limits of bomower, thendy,
it the eoedit risk w0 pre-coloulated amounts. “These processes welude 8 detailed appraisal merhodoligy, identificsion of niks and suinble struclumng amd
eredit sk mivigarion measuees. The Company sssesses increase in credit sk an an ongoing beiss far ameunts foan rmoavibles that beeome past due and default
s oonsidered (o have vecurred when smounts rocenable become 90 days past due

b)  Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
1) Company providis foe expected credit losses an Grineid wsees by ingg Individual Tiancil § for expectalivn ol any credit banen:
- Pt caishy and ol eyuivalenis and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with anly high- ate banks and frarcial instittions, oredit sk i respeet of
canh anud easly expuivalents, other bunk hakinces and bank deposis is evaliated a5 very by
- For mwvestments - Conndenng the myvestiments aeo i mutual funds, certficare of depsors and Gowernment secuatses, coedit nak i econswlened low.
« For Tomns compriamg secunty deposits pard - Credit eisk 10 consadered low beeause the Cotpany s in flossession of the underdyimg asscr
Forother fnancial ssets - Credit nak s evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the cevdit worthiess of those pustics mod loss allowanee s measueed G
12 month expected credit losses upan nitial secognition and provide for lifetme expected credie Josses upon significant ncrease in crcdit tisk The Company
diwn ot have any expected loss based impaioment secognised on such assets considenng theie low credie nsk nanese, ough the seconghation of capected eredic
Tows for all sub categaries of financial assets (uthee than loang) are disclosed below:

Estimated gross Expected Espected credit | Carrying amount
Al currying amount | poobability of losses net of impaiement
March 31, 2025 . ardefault default provision
Bank Balacce in curent gecounts & in Fooed Deponity 5655.60 i - 365360
Bank balsnees other than abave 265290 (L - 260299
Sesurity depasits 2815 (1] 2415
Other francnl fasets 115937 (P . 1,159.37
L Ll 1772 i - 17.72

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
An at carying amount | prohability of losses net of impairment |
March 31,2024 at defaule defanl provisian
Hunk Balenee in cutrent sccounts & in Fixed Deposits 4, 8B5.00 (G - 4.845.08
Hank halances other than dhove 3,959.09 L - 3,950.69
Security deposits 2453 s - 2453
Other feraneral assees 47182 (3 - 87182
|Reccivables 3AT.64 [ )

i) The company has off hooks poafihio of lans which is being managed on behall of principle panien. "Thie compiiy Tas provide fved depasits io the prnciple
partnery agaivat Gist loss defaul guamiece, The said fixed deposits ase lien marked v the concemed ponciple pacmen.
‘The ooenpanny veeods: o boss defauly porantee baldity based o conteacy serms with: each princple parmens as on encl reporng dan, Aong widy fin loss
default guarantes kabilty the company abso cecognine lnss allwance measared on lifoime cxpectod eredie boss i o ench reportmg date

iif) Expeced credit loss for loans
Thie Coimpany follows 3 dhooeatgse’ model for impaienvent based on changes in coedit guality since initial meogmition an summonsed below:

A finasiel tht is not eredit-umipaited on wutul recognition s casaified n Seage 1" and has it credit ank continucusty mommand by te Company 1e.
the: dofault s copayiment i wathin the sange of O 1 30 days,

IF a significant increase in crodit sk (SICR') dince initial recogaition s lentificd, the finaneisl instrument i maved fo %ege 2° bup te ane et deemed 1o be erdiy
impired e the default in repayment s within the rnge of 31 1o 90 daps.
If the finansial inserument s eredit-impaired, the financial instrument i then moved to Stage 3 te, the defasly i repiyment i mons tha U1 days

"The Expected Cradic Loss (FCL) i mensured ae 12-month BCL for Stage | loan mesets and ot hfetme BCL for Stage 2 and Smge 3 lon assets. BGL & the
pmdies of the Pmbability of Default, Baposuse st Defaudt and Loss Given Diefaule,
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As 7 part of o qualitati of whether a i m default, the Company alio considen & vanely of instances thar muy nudicate uplikeliness 1o pay
When such cvents oceur, the Company catefully constders whether thie event should sesult i broating the customer as defaulted and therefline assersed as Stage 3
e L. calentations or whether Stage 2 b sppeopriate. Such events inchude:

)€ Borner & deceated

() A matersal decrease m the undedying eollunen value whete the reeovery of the loan b cxpected from the sale of the collatoral
(i) A mateasl decrease in the borrower's twmover or the Toss o a major cusiomes

(%) The barmower requesting emargency funding from the Company

The Expested Credit Loss {REL) in measuned at 12month BCL for Stge 1 lose assets and a lifetite ECL for Stage 2 and Stags 3 b assos, FCL iy the
produet of the Probabality of Default, Exposuse ot Defalt and Lot Given Defalt

P Hooking ceonomie inf o (including It oveday) i inchuded in Jetermining the 12-munth and lfetime PO, EAD and LGD. The
asmtnpions underdying the expected credit Toss uee monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis
Changes in the gross carrving anil.the ponding ECL all I relation to logns from beginning o end of reporting period:
Punicutars Stage 1 (0-30 days) [ Stage 2 (31-90 days) 5“"‘; {I:i“” —
Grous easrying amoumt as at March 31, 2023 21259 10 52741 916.50
Asacto brigianted o puichased 18,357.77 1A [T
Nt framfer betwoen stages
Tuausker 1o stape | ' = a ey " gy
Transfix 1o stage 2 : [12.97) a1z [4.7%)
Trmnsler jo siape 5 (342480 {4128 TRIAZ
Assetn devecogmsed or wepand (exechiding weue offs) [ =) (200571 w271
W e - olfs . . 200,504
Giross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 30,769,584 71187 1,379,635
Arsetn otigenated br purchasod 31,700 259,70 [EETTH
Net i fer behwiten stajies
Teannfes 1o snpe | 043 {1568 (24,44
Treanater fiy stage 2 11,5991 11955 (20074)
Tranaer to wape 3 (1,707.75) s 210647
Asscts dececoppuised o repaid (cachiding write uits) (L1 4EN14) {500 R14LY
Wit - affn [hhl..ih_}l
Guoss carrying mmonnt as @ March 31, 2025 4181899 1,015,67 2,719.23
R iliation of loss all provision from beginning 10 end of reparting period:
Reconcilistion of loss allowance Stage 1{0-30 days) | Stage 2 /(3190 days) s“g‘; E;:;:; oo
Lowa allowance on March 31, 2023 5032 19,48 A RE
Tareeane of p e g ety oogmated or puechased durni the perod 20 AR TR 3
Not wanler befween smges ]
Tanasifier o iage 1 EiRE] 1.5 (=25
Tewnnfer w stege 2 W8 [2-7] =1
Travwler o wrage 3 {4043 [Tz 62
Iipijraict 0F BCL ot exposuees reansfirrod berseen stages during the yeae {2y 960 1hipA
Apaets lerecopnised o collect:il ({EN RS 2350 (165,30
Lioss allowance on March 31, 2024 4125 135.61 0197
incroase of provesm dve w st oogasicd or puechesed duegg die period .47 4293 STl
et wamier borwees suges
Trunsfer o atage 1 - (187 i ARy
Trunlfer o stage 2 . 214 am Tay
Trateler to stage 3 220 80,54y TS
Tnpact of ECL ot cays ferred bitween stajges i) thie year 236 310 801,70
Asotts dlerecagmised or collerted {01} n261) B340
Loss allowance on March 3, 2025 LR 245.08 §62.97
*Note The manapement = mantaning overlags of approx. e 340 eme o address filture contingencies & inty factor affectg
small ticket sis business Inans cie.

B) Liguidity risk

0}

Ligpaichity risk 15 the nak thar the {lompany will encounter difficulty i mecting the obligations awocmted with s financal labiities e are settled by delfvenng
cash or another fimancial asset. Ihe Commpang's approach to managing Hquidity w to eviure 2 far s possible, thar i anll have sufficient hquadiy o meet its
Tiallities when they ane dhe.

The Cosnpany ainteing febability in funding by mad w svailibility undee commirted eredit et Management nwmitors the Cotnpany'd Bguidity posivions
(alsty eranprising the undravn bormowing feilities) and cah and cash equivalents on the basin of expected cash flows The Company il mkes mimo scoount
ligquidiy of the market in which the entity operaes.

Financing arangements

The Company has acoess 10 the fillowmg undewn borrowing fclities at the ond of dhe eeporting period:

Farticulars ‘Total facility Dirawn Undrawn

March 31, 2025 . .

- Expinng beyond one year 1o - I

(Tatal 100 - 100

March 31, 2024

- Esprrmigg beyond one year 3,000 E S
4 1,100 G il

4100 500 3,500
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(AN srronsts i @ i Bk, unless siated otleewise)

(i) Marurities of fmanciil sssets and liabilites
The wlikes below armlyse e Compny frmncil psees snd lalhines s elevant ssaticry grovpings based on e sontectl mmiiase.
The ankamts declosed in the mible ace the contractial mdwcnunied cakh fows

As a1 Murch 31, 2025 Leess thun | year 12 year 23 yemr Maore than 3 yéirs Total
Finaneial asqets
Canaly swindd Gy eqpuivalenies GIOTAS - - - 6,007 65
“Bank balances other than cath and cash nqmsn]mh LT1581 12880 13008 - 284127
Recervahles 1972 - - - 1T
Lttt 30,3402 2446549 1231128 Ay 89342100
Oiher financial nssets . LITRLG 175 160 [ ] 1,187.52
Total undiscounted fnancial asscis 1945280 254N 1244959 2,040,402 AN A5
Financial habilitics
Diebt perimtres JB4R85 T3 - - 102202
| Bermmwings {othes than debn wecarities bur meluding intermst scemed) 2175296 1441290 5070 .68 3960124
Payahies 2431 - - Hil
Other finmmcial labilioes 30114 = - - Hil 4
Toral undi o financial liabiit 25, 14604 21,784.07 3,350.70 468 50,375.51
Net undincounted financial assers/ (lisbikities) 14,306.75 3,709.97 9,008.89 1,045, 4 29,060.95
ks Lasa than | 12 23 More than 3 Tous!
March 31, 2024 year year yesr e year
Financial assers
Cash and Cash equivalents 548580 : ERTERTS
"Bnk nlances other than canh and cash equivalents 157202 235166 - N 4 3,59
Rocewalles 337,64 - - 13764
Faxarm 156600 134214 §.405.30 203954 424004
Obyee frnancal aasets #946.35 - - 80035
Total andiscounted finaneial asucts 745292 17,4730 §,495.30 LIBAS 35,511.57
Financial lisbilitica
Dehi wcunties 200.35 2§r0.946 - - 12014
| Bereupings (thes than debn securines by inchadig st sacconed) 1346261 GA64.35 LT4LTH 72 2762
Payables 12706 : 127 0
(it financial Tabilite 4512 N = - Hye
Total undiscounted financial lahilitics 1403314 1195551 LT 227 29.943.12
Nt undi i financial asseo/ (liahilities) 13,424.78 321840 4,753.56 L7172 25,4845
©) Marker risk
a)  Imrerest Fate risk
i) Liabilitics

&

Ih‘imvmy’spduq‘wmmmummlnt:cuhﬁmvmk I om long At March 51, 2035, Ihc‘-nnpmynn[umd#m:lm@:ﬂnmﬂirrmmllm
thivngle bank boerewings at sarable it ates, The Comguny's nvestiments in End depeseits all pay Bt et s,

Iatercet nate pivk exposgre
Bcliry i the overll xposure of th Cotpatty b ikt e mic
Awat Al
aicbiery March 31,2008 | March 31, 203
Variabic rute libilitics
Hormowsngs oher than debr accunmies BS11T T, T
Fixed rate liabilitics
Vet Seaumitier FETI] R
Weaterwings other thah debt secunties 65 1325540
| Toml A3,309.43 ,192.59
Senginviy
“Serdtivity, o profit or koss  bomowing lavng xed inmeres e, = a0t appbedile.
i) Assets

The Compacy's fixed deposits sre carmed at amontised cost and oo feed e deposio. They s thermfors not subject w et mim sk as defined i Ind AS 107, noce: newhae the
earrying St o the fisfire cush M will Tiiefinte bocanise of o g i msckie interrs mies.
Note 41 Capital Hmpﬂm

The: Conpnny’s capntal jeetives st ensuez the Company's ability to continue s u gk camect, b comply with cutenally impescd capital requirement md
meitan Mrong eredit atngs ﬂli i preovide an adequette seeen to sharholders

The Comprny mitutors capial e tlie basis of the canpusg amount of equity les cash and cash equrvalents a5 presensed g the face of babnee diect,

Managemest fsseases the Company's eaprial eequsrements in onder o mantain a0 efficient ovenll finacag smicting while svoiding camessive Jevpage, This mhes il sceou) the
subieduation lovels of the Company’s vacious classen of debt. The Comypany manayes the capital stacovne and pakes sdjisemens o e lght of chasges m econtme eninon
and (he nsk ehameteranes of the undedying msets, In oedee 1o mmntin or adjust the :lplnl strueture, the Congurty ey adpist e amount of divadendy pao) w shareholdees, remim
zaputal i sharchalders, ivae new shaes, or sell assets to mduee debt

Particulars . March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Hemmmgs (other than dibt socune) 34.BBR 46 23450.39 '
bt Secunmnes RITE0 195213
Lcws; Canh amdd Cash Equnenlents - (6,007 85) {3483,
Ner debr® ) 3TASL7G 122566
Equity Shase Capita] (R 573579
Other Ly 326895 157336
Total cquity 19,0207 18,2705
equity rabo /Gearing ratio 199 L09

o cleht socunties + borrowmg othes than debt stcungies + sub-ordinated Tabhies + uterost scesed - cash sl eash erbvalent - lusik i
fen mracked).
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements fot the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhy, unless sited otherwire)

WNote 42: Maturity analysis of asscts and lahilities *
" “The wble below shaws an analysis of 2ssets und Rabilites snalyved sreording to when they see expected i be secovered or settled,

March 35, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within | Maore than Within | Mare than
Zmonthe | Bmontis | 7% | 2oionts | Rmonths [ TO
ASSETS
Financial nesets
Tl and cagh exjuasabents 605,84 - [ALTLE 2] FARS A - 5,485 46
Bank balances other than cash and eash equividents 1502484 1,106, 16 269299 SHT.HE IATIRL 3,959.69
Recvvables 1733 019 1772 33764 3364
Loans 21,638.82 ( 2918113 | - 50819.95 | 1250124 | 2537708 | 37.R7432
Dither Hinaneial agsers _ 1,157.52 - 1,187.52 £96.35 - 896.35
30,44255 | 3028147 | 60,724.02 | 19,808.97 | 28,748.89 | 48,557.85
Naon Financial assets
Current 1ax assets (et} - 1,006.52 1,006.52 - 92373 22373
Deferned tax assets (net] . 937.09 937.00 . 1,050.99 1,000.99
Propecty, plant and equipment 7559 526,83 GO2.41 57.50 27448 331.98
Oher intangible asscrs . 538 538 236 - 230
Capural WIP - - - o2 - .21
Orther non Grancal assers §29.78 - 22978 57500 - 57509
90537 | 2,565.81 | 3A7LI8 644.16 |  2.280.30 | 293336
TOTAL ASSETS 3134702 | 32,547.28 | 64,195.20 | 2045313 | 31038.09 | 5149122
[LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Treade Pavables
total outstinding dues of MSMEs 4317 - 4317 1378 - 1378
towd) outstanding dues of eeeditars other than MSMEs 199.94 . 199,94 11328 . 11328
Dbt secunties 2005694 6,967.15 ROT4.00 - 1952143 195213
Borrowings (other than debit secunities) 21,752.96 13,13250 | 34 88546 164038 1381901 | 2345539
Other fisneial habdites 30114 - 30114 243,12 . 24312
24,304.15 | 20,099.65 | 4440380 | 10,000.56 | 1577L4 | 2576170
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisnong 53947 12114 H60.61 20.66 1,606.56 163622
Oitbes pon fimncal habbines 106,05 . 10605 10815 . 10815
45.52 12814 766,56 137.81 1,606.56 1,784.37
TOTAL Liahilities 4,949.67 | 20,22079 | 4517046 | 10,148.37 | 1737770 | 27,526.07
Net 6,308.25 | 12,62649 | 1902474 | 10,304.76 | 1366039 [ 23,965.15
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SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Motes 1o the financial statements for the perdod ended March 3, 2025
(Al atomnts i 2 n kakhs, unless stated otherans)

Note 43: Corporate Socinl Responsihilicy

Note 44: Segment Reporting
The Compiy opetates in o singlo eepotable sepiment e Braneiys aesaty, which has semibac naks aod tetms for thi puspose of Tl AS 108 "Openanng sepments” sad i conmdenal 1o
be the coly sepomable buncs segment. The Cumpany deeves i majoe revenies fron figancing, sctivities and s cnponmens sre wadespresd. Fumher, du Conny & operstng i Tidi
which is coasidered 38 3 single geugraphical segment :
Ninte 45: Adlitional diselosures as required by the Reserve Bank of India
Gy Capital o Risk Assets Ravio (CRAR)
Particulars Anat Asar
March 31, 2025 | March 35, 2024
CRAR (%) 342 4840
CRAR - Thee T Cagutal (20) 3762 A8 )
CRAR - Tiee | Caprad (4% . -
Laquihity Covernge Ratio 2%, 2
Amuowit of siboedinated deb mised as el capital - .
Amuunt rained by ssie of il Debie Instonments
(i)
Purticulurs As at As
March 31, 2005 | March 31, 2024
Value of Investments

A per Seeron 135 of thie Comparucs Ack, 2013, 2

wieetinyg the

needs to apend ar-loss 2% of us sverye net profit e the smmdmrly preoeding e

financul peass on composes pocial pesponsbility (CSK) setvites. The said section » apphcable on the comy however, derng wverge profit for Lt 3 yeas, amownt equired 1o be
spent pdier (51 i il
2 Grows amopnt requned 19 be apent by (he company durng the yeie 1 Nl and prevsous yeac o Nl |
T Amount spent durtngg the yer o

For the period ended March 31, 2023 Por the period ended March 31, 3024
Particulars Pand Total Paid Total

1, Consmucnon sequisktion of 1n asset

Yet 1o be paid

Yet 1o be paid

2 O purpone other than (1) ahove

G Value of Tnvesemenm

Tos Snnel
Onmsade Dady,

Trt Indlaa
Curmicle Bk,

Any Trudia.
Outmide Tndui,

inions hield towards depreciation on investm eits
® Opemng bulance

Aualid : Provescns mace durdng the year [ =
(ni) Laess . Wniteoff / wirite- back of excows provisinas dueng the yer -

(1) Derivatives:-

The: Company bas no posure in deeivatives in the eneront period al previous feid.
(i) Details of assig ti Jertah

The Comyruy has 0o A0 MR 11 S o m the cument peniod and provioos penod.
{¥) Detuils of A ial asset sold 1o § itisation / R jon C y for useet i

The Comymy has no okl froncil assets w Securitination [/ Re sty Coarrp for 33set

L : Cloping balanes

(vi) Detsils of non-pecfomiing finunciul e purchased [ sold=-
The Comprany has sot puschascd/sold non-peeformmg el s in the curent pedod sl predous peviod.

{vii) Exposure o real estate secton-
The Conipany has no expoyuee o real estite sector dunng, the cument penod and proviou pennd.

(viii) Exposure to capital market:-
The Comyprng Has ries expirsiiee 0 eapil nacker during the cureent perivd and peovious perind,

i cuisrent period and previons pervd
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SATIN FINSERV LAMITED
Notes 1y the Brancial suterenta for the period coded March 31, 2028
(AT mneuns in € b ki, vinles sated athepwise)

A0 “There i i ciers of mmEenonn withy the companies stpack off andes secron 208 of Compemen Act, 2013 o section 560 of Coigusia Act, 1950

47 Trade Receivibles ageing schedule
| Pieiicibies Dutsanding for folowing periods from due dte of et - Maseh 31 2025
Noe duc Leww than § months |6 monihs - | yewr |12 years 1.3 vea Mute than 3yeirs | Trial
) i : 1290 42y [0 - 1172

Increang in

T i
= which hesve aign

V3 Disgraned Treado Tegeivabiles —which have sgnifieant incoeise in
condhl tisk 4
i) Disputed ‘Trads Recervablet - procdit impuied

Ouistanding for folipwin inds from due date of March 31 2004
Mot due Less than § months |6 mumntls - | 1-2 yoind 1.3 years More than 3 years
= 1113 147

320R4 217

ngrise i

474 Unbifled reveniie schedule

(0 Uinclinjssred 1nbillea] tevesiue - eonsidesd good

Uohilled revenue agemg schedule
Partienkirs

Unclispusted Unibdler] revensie - comiduted good

A8 Additinnal infurmation parveany o Ministey of Comporate Alfais nolification dated Murch 24, 2001 with sespect 1 i in S e 111 of Companies Act, 2000
(i) Thers: zie no penceedings which bave been iniriated or pending against e company for halding sy bosmi propeeey under the P Toomacins (Frobibinon) Ace, 1988 (43 of 1986) snd nles mas

therounder

(i} The companiy & nota wilhal delalier s dockarod by any bank or fnanerl Instituion oc sy ofsee leudon

it} Thers s no chacge or i ot 1o e sgistered with Reghtrar of Compaiics (ROC] beyond the staiutory peekind.

(i) The company hos conphed sith ihe iumber of uyer peescribod usder chiine (87) of soction 2 of the Ave real with Compinies (Restricnon on pumber of Lagend Wales, 2017,

(¥) Thete soe no tramsctions which afe not cecorded in e hooks of accounts st has been sorendered or dstlosed o inevime dirmp e yearin the oo ssersmens undse the Toviene Tix Act, 1961 {vuch
iy sesmrhl of wirvey o sy ather relovant peoymist of the Tnosme Tax Acy, 1901,

vl ¥he Company lus not maded or mvestsd in Crypeo auerency or Vil Corrency dosng the ear:

Tutal
1204

Baaring the year, no Rands (shich e maberal ther indio'uk;dl} e i the uggrepare) have beein alvsned or kuvesd or nvesied (el from bommyed fandy o share prommm oe g ather smarces o kind of By by
the Cormpany o or m wny other pevson oc ennry, inclading forcign entiy Jearicn™), swich tive und litig, ssether sl in aniting of othirwse, that the Tnennediuey shall, whllier, deeoty e iuleetly
Tenied o inveal ot sther porons or entities idenrifisd iy mannes whatsoever Ly or o bebalf of the Company (*Uttimane Beneficanet”) or provele any pusesnpe, secinry, or she ke on behalf of die Uit

(i) Benchcianes.
Drunngy the yese, o funds (uwhich are ssatéeil cidies individaally e in thie sggrogate) have leen tecerved by the Company oo ay pesson ur etily, tickiding fotegn ertey (Funding Parmes'), with the
wideratanding, whisthor mcorded in wenng or otherwise, thar the Camngany shal, whether, diecisty or mdireerly, lendl ar invest in other peritns o entitien idertified in ity manner whatioeves by or io
{vil) Iehalf of the Fmding Party (“Ulimate fenefiisise™) or provide ang ganitee, sty or e B oo behaf of the Ulnosie Benofickine.
4 e yeas Figsiees have been te-grouped/rc-clissified wheteves necrsary 1o makic it comparable with the figuro prescied for e pes endel s Misch 2005,

The sceampaying, nokes ase an integral paes of the Guaicial stalemcny.

As per our seview repeet of evan dte attached

Forand oo behall of the Board of Drecios of

For Rujeey Bhatin & Associntes
Accountag Satin Finaery Linited
F !
Raje t
M.No. 0890018
ansal
Oificer
Place: Guragram Place : Gurugram
Dade Apeil 25, 2025 Drate: April 25, 2025
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the finuncial sutements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(AN msomats we & w lalchs, unless sl otlierwod)

{ix) Diselossere relating o

The Comgany Jias enired it agroement for the seeuntnon of Joans with asignoes, whersin it hes sceuritd a gart of iy Jeans: portfolio srmousting o (N
12,358.52 Tkl dusiing the yeae ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 INR 4259.71 fakhs ), being the principal value oulsianding as on the date of the leals thar are
outssnding The Company s nesponable for colleeton snd swrvioig of this Joan portbolic on behalf of invessors/buyees. T ems of die saud seeuriiation igeoemenss,

the Company pays o mvestor) hisyers o sgroed dane basii the peomats coblection amont 25 per sndnidul sgeeeient tema

ol asount of secumitieed a3se1s a5 per boaky of the SPEs

For the perind | For the period
Particulars ended March 31, [ended Muarch 31,
2028 2024
1. Mo iof SPEs holdng assers for secuntvmtnn tmnscnans ongmated by (he onginatoe | ol
3

1742138 5 N2 D)

j2ran
3, Toul aonnt of exp vetaisiedd by the otygnatr ws comply swith MRR a8 on the dane of balsnce sheet

1,726,700

519.72

) Off Balance sheet ingpostims

* Frrwr hoss

* Othiers

1) On Bakance sheer exposures

* First los

* Ul

3 Amount of exg i othee than MIR

1) (1T Balance sheet exposuces

1) Exposuse o (mn secmntizanions

¥ et loss

* Drhers

) Vixposwirs o shrd parey secuntezmnons

* Pigst lows

“ LChhers

by O Walwier shoit exposieey

1) Expiniune to 0w secuniustsms

* Farst Joan

32:55]

* Chhers

«m) Esposiare o thind party secuntzeatsing

* Frrear boss

* [hers

3 Sale comudiranon recereed foe the sceuntued assers and gan/loss on sale oo account of socudizton

15,357.52

G Fesens aniad giantum ftstanding vahue) of seenices provided by way o, Byuility suppor, post-secisitaation 1ot wivicng, oo

7 Performancy of fachty proveled, Please prsvide sepaeately fie cach faoibiry v Gredie enfrancement, lguidity sappeu,

servicriy apent e Moeten pescent in hached as of wol value of holy provided

a) Aoy paied

b} Mepayrient evcened

) Ourstamdig, st

2,650,325

B Avemgye dofsalt rate of potfolios olseeverd wn the past, Please provide brcalop

mately for cacly anset chas 1o, RMBS, Vebicle Lesans et

9 Aot sl mamber of additional [iop up boan grven on same uvidedying ssset

Pleasg provide bresthyp sepaately for cach asset class e, RMBS, Yebele Loans et

10 Invesor compleinty [8) Diwecdly/Indimeedy eeceivest ands (b) Gomplamn

outsmnding

{x) Information on instances of fraud:-

Nature of frand {Gish embezzlement by emplovee) For the year ended | For the vear ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Numbor of Cawey 1

Amount of Frud - 176

Kegpve: - -
Amorns watien off - 176

Navure of fraud (Borowei) For the yeur ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nuntiber of Cases - 1
Arscuant of Presuad 175.12
Tecovery . -
st wratten off 17512
() Dierails of single b limit ded by applicable NBFC:-

The Conmprary does st have siogle B nm-fuu. 2 thve: Tiniats sl the cussent peneid wid preevios perind.
(i) Dieails of Ananciag of puient Company p
Thie Company dies not have such tesnaaction during e curna penod sod previoas peaod.
(witi) Registration obtained from other inancial secior regulainr:-
The Company w moistored with the Missntey of Coporate Affaies” (Finaneil wulstirs s descabed Yy Musary of Faee),
{xiv) Disclosure of Penaltics inposed by RBL & other reguluors:-
No penudnes iaposed by RBT d et regularors duning the euereot pericd and previou pedod.

(=¥} Concenuation of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Particulai As st March 31,2025 | A4 3 Jaech 3L
Concentrution of Advinces

Total sdvances to pwenty largest bosrowors 40933 J.949.81
(%) ol advances o nvienry lavpest botrowers o toml nd-vmr:s TB5) 1214%
Concenwanon of Exposures

Toul exposure: w twenty hegest boromwen 09337 398981

{'m of exposure i tweoty lgest borowees o el exprsm T.85% 12 1444

jom of NFAs

Tunl civkre Ak g B NPA accoumts 5302 3290
W) ol expiomare o top M -"" oy [ (L 010
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the perdod ended March 31, 2023
(Al o b Tin lakhs, unless seated otherwise)

{xvi) Movement of NPAs:-

For the year For the year
Pasticulacs ended March 31, |ended March
2023 31, 2024
1) Mot NPAs @ net advance (M) 3171% 3.20%
i) Movement of WPAs (Grioss)
) Oypening Balunee 159734 1,044.62
15y Addition dunng the year 223704 06730
) Redductinn, wite 0ff duning the year (V2R.90) [414.54)
) Closing halitnce 200562 1,59738
i) Movement of NPAs (Net)
a) Opening halance 1,050:99 60565
b} Addition dunng the year 141151 06956
) Reduction, wate off dunng the year (578.17) (224.22)
o) Cloming balance 168433 1,050.99
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAw (éxcluding peovisions
om siandard asscrs)
a) Ciperung balance 54640 43897
&) Addition during the year 75,62 0774
o] Reduetion write off duriny the year (35073 {19032
) Closing bulanee 103129 546,40

{wvii) Unsceured advances - seler i 7 of Balance Sheet Nuotes

fxvili} Provisions & contingencies (shown under Fxpenses head m statement of profit & losr)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March
2025 31, 2024
Deovision for standund and non pecfvmming tssets 66510 9245
Procyision for granaty 25.97) 37.55)
Prowision for compensation absences (004 20.43)
Other Provisions (106159 160,63

(xix) Un-hedged foreign currency
Ty Company does not have any foregn currency trunaction duniing the curreny and peevious perind.

() Intra-group exposures:-

For the year For the year [For the For the year
ended March 31, Jended March [year ended |ended

Particulars 2025 (Cuwtamiery |31, 2024 March 31, [Macch 31,

(Custorner) 2025 2024
(Bosrawer) |(Borrower)

1) Total smoumt of mivmgroup cxposires 0 110 (LY VL

b) Temal smswant of top 20 inte-grolp exprisures 000 (.60 L0 (LD0

¢} Perventige of witr-group cxposures to tofal exposun: of

the Company cn borrowers/ customess 0,005 L0 [ Nt

Disclosure of stress pxsets an required undey notification issued by RBI dated August 96, 2020, RBI/2020-24/16 DOR.No,BP.BC/3/21.04,048/2020-21

ey with notification issued by RBI dated und May 03, 2024, RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC. 11/2L04.048/2021-22 {INR in Lakhs)

Type of (A) By ©) ) (E)

t Exp w0 Of (A), ageregaic debt Of (A) amount OF (A) amount paid Exposure o
classified as Standard that slipped into NPA |written off during by the borrowers accounts classified
consequent to [during the half-year the half-year during the half-year a6 Standird
implementation of |eansequent 1o
resolution plan - Position implementation of
ar af the end of the resolution plan
previous halfyear (A) ~Pasition as at the

end of this half-year
| Peniomal

Loaas —

Corpruate

pemsang® i i

00 wiich,
MSMEr {

Oitlees - - = =

MSMI: 33852 7.22 24,54 3027

Total 33852 7.22] - 28 376 |

*An defined i Section 3(7) of the larolvency and Bankouptcy Code, 2086, X

“W 2
2 (GuRUGRAN )=
-

@ )
$ G

*
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the pecdod ended March 31, 2025
(AN antounts it T in kakbs, unless stated atherwise)

{anbv) Breachies i tenns of covenanis in respect of laans svailed by the NBFC or debt securivien fvnwed by the NBFC invloding incidence /o of defanh.:
There b v bevach in derms of covennts i resprot of loass avasled or debit secoritios weued by the Compay as on March $1,2005

(axv) DHvergence in aseet clasnification and provisianing sbove o conuin tireshold w be decided by ilie Redene Banlo-
Thiens bs o dwvoigenre e sssot el ficasion anl paovislaming © be repoeiod o per K giadelines,

{xuii) Sectorml Exposure:-

Fug the vens ended March 31, 2025 Vo the veir ended March 3, 2024
Total Toral
Exposure Percentage Exposure Perceniage
{includes of Gross {includes of Gross
| o—— on balance Grroes NI'As 1 an bislance Gross NPAs 10
sheet and NPAx toal alieet and NPAs toial
aff-halance exXpasare in off-balance expusure in
sheet that sectior sheet that sector
exposure) exposure)
Agricutture and allicd acivitics £T2840 A8 1201% AT 536,43 2
MEME T4 a2 G 3,773 54| AT450) 12547
Services L4 387,75) 1,399.00) 446 TS0 40T 179
Carpoeute baerowers 112037 . (LM 4,197 04| L0 LACUT
Oilseaw 261.61 23 1156k 240,14 TELM) 2.2
Tptal 52,153.89 2,905.63) 5574 n,m.n?t L5 as|  dset
(nvii) Coptomes comphiints:-
[Fae the year ended [For the yeat ended
Parviculies March 3, 2025 March 3, 2024
3) Numbies of ensipluns pending at the bepmnnlog o1 the yead] -
b Number of campilaing seeened dusing ihe year 16 B
<) Sumber af eomplsints disposed dunng e year i) 31
O which, nmber of comyplunn reeeiid by the company -
|1|| Numbior of camplaint pending st the cnd of tie year (19

Lo five grounds of complaints received by the Company from custamer

Girmumeds of complamis,
e, compluints rebating 18) [mber of complaints T
pending a1 the e ::u:.:: ol (Number of complaios [OF 5, number of
bseginming of received Lo . Apending at the end of |complaims pending
th i L
e yeir duriag e ovee the previain the year beynnd W daye
year yeur
1 2 ] 4 ] o
Fot the year ended March 31, 25
Compiming wat e of bein
|fisbrsement - 11 =360
Onthier Conmiplaings - Lij UM
For the year ended March 31, 224
Caimphainn/ Cagpcies wt
‘xrﬂn ol lugn agrecment 12 S - -
(e Comipladnng = - IS . _

(enviif) Raving assigned by eredit rating agencies and migeation of mtinge duting the year-
During thie year, e Cormpany’s varsous wateumcnts were rinl, the detmils of these stings sre w under-

5. No. Particulurs Amoung |Cditming .
|agency Current rating Previous viting
1 Long teem L Tascd bask Bealities Ak [ICHA Limited 1CRA A- Sk ICHA A- (Stabk)
r] o Comverribe [ Seben s G0 [ICRA Limited ICRA A Bubic) 1CHA A« Sabl]
3 S Comrertilile Debenfines 000 [IGRA Limited |rcu A TRl NA
Becuntreatinn (Nintbos) ALUETE. A- [SCh
4 A0 | Aeuire Ranngs Ll JReaffirmed ACUITE A= 30
Secutitizativi {Adiin CARE A (5)
5 L9 [EARE Ranmgs Lid |Reaffinmed (CARE A- (51
i s - CARE BRI 51
Secutiietion Tesuche)- Admial v
6 ity itz 1048 [CARE atings L [Renfrnct CARE B 500
_ C TGRA A= 50)
7 focydibingion R 00 [ICRA Lissiles) It 1 ICRAJA+S01
|Securitizatom (Fouity Tranche) Ensarn CRATREY 60
3 Ry et B 049 (IR A Limised Reafiiemesl TAJHIIH50)
: TCHA A (50)
$e 1 )
9 ey (L) 1178 MCRA Lot fiéme TCIAYA 03]
10 Secunnzanon (Harerdly) V00 [HCRA Limited FORA AA- (500 NA
11 [Seennifiration (usteely) 1.88 |ICIA Emited WRA A+ (50} NA
12 Seeuntization (Muestreak) 2599 |ICRA Limited JERA A 00 NA
13 L MVoda) 3024 [DEILA Limined JORA A S0 WA
Secuntizanon [Lgaty Tranchel Yods ICRA Lln e (50
14 L85 [ICRA Limited Reaifirsied NA
15 5 (Lumfy) 20 [ITILA Lamited TCHA A (50T NA
‘/\;7;__". A& ,.%..n,, (Fiquity Teanchic)-Lunify HIRA BBE+ {80
By L Lm 182 PIETUA Lamitend Heaffimed NA

+ the renfTimed ating, |




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Mates 1 the financial statenrents for the period ended Mauch 11, 2025
(AT seponongs i ¥ i Taklis, wnless amiod otherwing

" (exi) Sehedule o Balance Sheet
Purtienbun Aaar s

Maech 3, 2025 March 3, 125
Aot Ounanding Amour Cverduie

Tiabifities Side

1) Louns and advances svuiled by the NBEC inclueive of interest sccrued thercon but not paid:
() Dobenitues : Securerd #0740

Unseeured .

(eother than falling sathin the eeaning of pubbic depsi )
(b} Defeared Ceudiy = =
() Teren Loans MM
{4} Testerconporate loann amd liornwing
() Comimercial Paper

wits inclusive of interest accrved thoseon but vt

(a) s the form of Unsecuted disbentuses
{5) Ire thse fromees oof parely secuned debertires e, debentures where e b shiomtfall 2 thie vabue of seevniy .

Aot Quistanding

3 : of Loans and Advances bills receivables [ocher thun those inchaded in (4) below):
) Securail [UEET
{h) Unsécumed ) ) 300143
4) Break up of Leaged Assets and wiock on hire and other sssets counting towards asset fi g activities
) Leane ansets mehaling fease rentals under sundry debiurs
(1) Fimancil lense
(1) Opermating loase
(b) Stock on bire mchudug bire chrnges onder sundry debioes
i) Anets o b
(i) Beposanssed) Assers
(e} Othier b ciounting forwmrds amset Grarscinyg actvites c
) Lo wohiens asscts have bress repossesied
(1) Lewins otfacy than (a) abuve
|5} Beeskip of Lnveatmignrs
Current Fvestments
a) Quored -
) Shiases
[a) Bqaiey o
(b} Prefetence
o) Debennues wnd onils
at1) Llrsits of ostueal funds
) Lreermanent Scenntes
) Otherd
b) Ungquested
1) Shares
) Vpianty
() Proference
i) Debenmres and Bomds
wi) Limers o i) foels
i) Govemment Secuntes
v} Others
Lawng Tern mvesiments
5] Quisted
1) Slares
(1) Exity
(B Drefescisce
] Debesitures and Donds
1) s of vunual fisndy
w} Governmenty Secuntics
¥) Ochers
) Linuetad E
1) Shares =
o) gty
) Preference =
) Dxebenpores and Bonds
i) Liratn of mumal funds
w) Gavermment Secunnes

V) Ehers
E% Borrowes group-wise classification of assets financed as in (%) aad (4) dhove:
Category Ansount net of provisinos

Secured Unsecured Total

1) Helated Marnies

{1} Subsilanes

) Compames m the e g
(€) Ocher selated pares E
2) Oher thasy sclgsed parties
ZaUAE 4o\ Total
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Motes vo the financial sasement for e period ended March 31, 2025
Al amenats n & b lakha, wnbess sood othorwsd)

) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {¢usrent and long term) in shares and securitiea (both
quoned and unguoted) @

Category

Market Value / Break)
up or fair value o
NAY

Book Valwe (Net of]
Provisions)

1) Relted Parncs

() Suhsicharies

(b} Counguaies in the wime g
(€] Oriher relared partcs

2} Chther than seluted parmes

(in) Aanets acquiced i aisficnon of debt

) Other information
Particulars Amunt
1 Croows Non-Perfonming Aty 915,62
) Thutesd parties
(b Cither than pedwied partes 290562
(1) Mot Non-Performing Assers 188433
(a) Teelased pasies
() Oehier thin sebatesl partics 18433
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